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TENNESSEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM BONDS

Maturities, Amounts, Interest Rates and Prices

$160,000,000 Issue 2022-3 Bonds (Non-AMT)

$37,465,000 Issue 2022-3 Serial Bonds

Principal Principal
AmountDue  Interest cusiP Amount Due Interest cusip
Year January 1 Rate Price Number" July 1 Rate Price Number
2023 $ 1,325,000 3.00% 100.000% 88046KBE5
2024 $1,350,000 3.05% 100.000% 88046KBF2 1,370,000 3.10 100.000 88046KBGO
2025 1,390,000 3.25 100.000 88046KBH8 1,415,000 3.30 100.000 88046KBJ4
2026 1,440,000 3.45 100.000 88046KBK1 1,465,000 3.50 100.000 88046KBL9
2027 1,490,000 3.60 100.000 88046KBM7 1,515,000 3.65 100.000 88046KBN5
2028 1,545,000 3.75 100.000 88046KBPO 1,575,000 3.80 100.000 88046KBQS
2029 1,605,000 3.90 100.000 88046KBR6 1,635,000 3.95 100.000 88046KBS4
2030 1,670,000 4.00 100.000 88046KBT2 1,700,000 4.05 100.000 88046KBU9
2031 1,735,000 4.15 100.000 88046KBV7 1,770,000 4.20 100.000 88046KBW5
2032 1,810,000 4.25 100.000 88046KBX3 1,850,000 4.30 100.000 88046KBY1
2033 1,890,000 4.40 100.000 88046KBZ8 1,930,000 4.45 100.000 88046KCA2
2034 1,970,000 4.55 100.000 88046KCBO 2,020,000 4.55 100.000 88046KCC8

$ 122,535,000 Issue 2022-3 Term Bonds

Principal Interest CuUsIP
Maturity Date Amount Due Rate Price Number®
July 1, 2037 $ 13,150,000 4.75% 100.000% 88046KCD6
July 1, 2042 26,585,000 4.95 100.000 88046KCE4
July 1, 2048 40,455,000 5.05 100.000 88046KCF1
January 1, 2053 (PAC) 42,345,000 5.50 104.552 88046KCG9

() The CUSIP Numbers have been assigned to this issue by an organization not affiliated with THDA and are included solely for the convenience of the
bondholders. Neither THDA nor the Underwriters shall be responsible for the selection or use of these CUSIP Numbers nor is any representation
made as to their correctness on the bonds or as indicated herein.



No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations, other than
those contained in this Official Statement (this “Official Statement”), in connection with the offering of the Offered Bonds, and, if given or made,
such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by THDA or the Underwriters. This Official Statement
does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Offered Bonds in any jurisdiction in
which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been furnished by THDA and obtained from
other sources that are believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and, except for information provided
by THDA, is not to be construed as a representation of THDA. The Underwriters have included the following sentence for inclusion in this
Official Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their respective
responsibilities to investors of the Offered Bonds under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of the offering of
the Offered Bonds, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. The information and expressions
of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of THDA since the date hereof. The Offered
Bonds may be offered and sold by the Underwriters to certain dealers at prices lower than the initial public offering prices set forth on the inside
cover page, and such public offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriters.

THE OFFERED BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.

THE OFFERED BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR
REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR
DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT, ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSACTIONS WHICH MAINTAIN OR
OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE OFFERED BONDS. SUCH ACTIONS, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY

TIME.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page Page
INErOAUCHION. ... 1
Designation of The Issue 2022-3 Bonds as Social Financial Summary of Residential Finance Program... ....29
BONGS .ottt 3 Consolidated Revenues and Net Position............... .29
GONETAI ...ttt 3 Investments.............cooooiii ..30
Social Bonds Designation..............ccc.uvveeeeeeeeeiiiieeee e 3 THDA ..., B I 30
Independent Second Party Opinion on Social Bond Designation and Purpose and Organization ............cccooecveeiiiee e 30
DISCIAIMET ...ttt enae 4 Board of DIreCtors...........coviiiiiiiic i 30
Description of Offered Bonds .............ccoiiviiiiiiiiiiie e 4 Executive Staff Members Involved
GBNEIAL ...t 4 in Lending and ServiCing...........cooouviiiiieiiiiieeiie e 30
Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds.. .5 THDA Funds
Selection by Lot ......coveveveeeeiieicieieciceee, .9 Tax Matters.......................
Notice of Redemption......... .9 Opinion of Bond Counsel.............ccoooiiiiiiiiiicce e 38
Application of Bond Proceeds.............cc........ .9 Related Tax Matters..........ccviiiiiiiiiiice e 39
Security and Sources of Paymentof Bonds.................ccoooeiii 10 Tennessee Tax Matters .39
Security of Bonds and Sources of Payment...............ccccceveveveevnnee. 10 Legal Investment............. ... 39
BONA RESEIVE FUN ........ocvviiiiiiei e 10 Ratings........ccccevvveeenns ....40
Additional Bonds............cccovvvvieeiiiiiiiiieee e .10 Continuing Disclosure ............... ....40
Business Disruption Risks; COVID-19; Cybersecurity.. ...10 Secondary Market Disclosure........ ....40
General ...... ....10 Continuing Disclosure Undertaking..............occvvviieeiniiiiieeeesiiiieeeenn 40
COVID-19...... .1 Absence of Material Litigation..............ccooiiiiiiiiiee 42
Cybersecurity.........cccooveviiiiciicnieee 12 Certain Legal Matters............. ... 42
Assumptions Regarding Offered Bonds...............cccoveiiiieeierieiieeneenns. 13 Financial Statements ... .42
(7= o= = 1 TP 13 Underwriting ...... 42
Payments of Principal and Interest on MISCEIIANEOUS ... 43
the BONAS ...t 13
Program Loans..........cccccoevveennnen. .14 Appendices:
Nonorigination of Program Loans .... .14 A--Financial Statements................coooiiiiiiiin el AR
ghanges in Federal or State Law .... 15 B-- Summary of Mortgage Insurance and
FEPAYMENTS ...ttt 5 G tee P B-1
THDA Redemption PractiCes...........ccovveiiieeiiiieeiiee e 15 Cuara.n eef rogr.ams """ o G """"""""""""""""""""""
Payment of Program Expenses. 16 B-- Certain Information Relating to GNMA,
Investment Assumptions........... ....16 Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Certain
Average Life of PAC BONAS .........oooiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 16 Program Securities .............cccoveiiiiiiniiiiiei e B-2
Projected Weighted Average Lives for C--Description of Agreements with Originating
PAC BONGS ...ttt 18
Residential Finance Program Bonds............ccccoviiieiniieiiiiiciiiieeeeen 19
Bonds Outstanding Under the Resolution .............cccceeviiiiiiiicnnnee. 19
Origination EXPEreNnCe. ..........vvevvevveereenn. .20 E--Other THDA Financings, THDA Funds and
Residential Finance Program Loans .............cc..ccccc..... 221 THDA Activities...... ..o E-1
Description of Residential Finance Program Loans .. .21 F--BoOk-Entry-Only System...........cccceeeeeiiviieeeeeirieisieeieeseennaF=1
Residential Finance Program Portfolio Data ..............ccccviiieiiieeenns 24 G--Residential Finance Program Loan
Originating and Servicing Procedures..............ccocovviviiniininn. G-1
H--Proposed Form of Legal Opinion for
Issue 2022-3-BONAS......ccooeuiuiiiiiiiiie e H-1
|--Historic Delinquencies and Foreclosures..............cccoccvenceennnn -1
J--Kestrel Verifiers’ Second Party Opinion...............cccevveivniennnne. J-1
K—Use of Proceeds Report.............cevviiiiiiiiiiiiciiiciieciieceas K-1

CSG ADVISORS INCORPORATED
Financial Advisor



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY



OFFICIAL STATEMENT
TENNESSEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENTAGENCY

Residential Finance Program Bonds
$160,000,000 Issue 2022-3 (Non-AMT)

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement (the “Official Statement”) provides certain information in connection with the issuance
by the Tennessee Housing Development Agency (“THDA”) of its Residential Finance Program Bonds, Issue 2022-3 in
the aggregate principal amount of $160,000,000 (the “Issue 2022-3 Bonds” or the “Offered Bonds”).

THDA is authorized to issue and sell its bonds and to conduct its other activities by Tennessee Code Annotated
Sections 13-23-101 et seq., as amended (the “Act”). The issuance and sale of the Offered Bonds is authorized by the
General Residential Finance Program Bond Resolution, adopted by THDA on January 29, 2013, as amended and
supplemented (the “General Resolution” or the “2013 General Resolution”), and by a Supplemental Resolution
authorizing the sale of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds, adopted by THDA on July 19, 2022, as approved in its amended and
supplemented form by the designated Authorized Officer of THDA on September 29, 2022 (as so amended and
supplemented, the “Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution”). The General Resolution and the Issue 2022-3
Supplemental Resolution are herein collectively referred to as the “Resolution.”

The Act requires submission to the Bond Finance Committee of THDA, which consists of the Chairman of THDA
and the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of Tennessee, the Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee, the
State Treasurer of the State of Tennessee, and the Commissioner of Finance and Administration of the State of
Tennessee, of a plan of financing pertaining to the sale of any bonds or notes by THDA and to request that the Bond
Finance Committee sell such bonds or notes on behalf of THDA, under the terms and conditions set forth in the Act.
The Bond Finance Committee approved the plan of financing with respect to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds on July 19, 2022.

Under the Act, THDA may have bonds and notes outstanding in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding
$4,000,000,000, excluding bonds for which the payment or redemption of which has been or will be set aside and held
in trust in amounts sufficient to pay, when due, the principal and interest thereof, and in the case of redemptions, for
which redemption notices have been sent. As of August 31, 2022 THDA had bonds and notes outstanding in an
aggregate principal amount of $2,687,510,000 as calculated in accordance with the Act.

Bonds issued under the General Resolution, including the Offered Bonds, are and will be special limited
obligations of THDA, payable solely from the revenues and assets of THDA pledged under the General Resolution for
the payment of the principal and redemption price thereof and the interest thereon, including the Bond Reserve Fund
established pursuant to the General Resolution, as more fully described herein under the caption “SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT OF BONDS”. All bonds issued under the General Resolution, including the Offered Bonds,
are equally and ratably secured by the pledges and covenants contained therein and all such bonds, including the
Offered Bonds, are sometimes referred to herein as the “Bonds”. The security interest created by the pledge of the
General Resolution is governed by Tennessee Code Annotated Sections 9-22-101 et seq., as amended, relating to the
perfection, priority and enforcement of public pledges and liens (the “Public Pledge Act”). Security interests governed
under the Public Pledge Act are expressly exempt from Tennessee’s codification of Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial
Code.

The revenues and assets of THDA pledged under the General Resolution are not pledged as security for bonds
under THDA'’s Housing Finance Program Resolution (the “2009 General Resolution®), THDA’s Homeownership Program
Resolution (the “1985 General Resolution”) or THDA’s Housing Bond Resolution (Mortgage Finance Program) (the
“1974 General Resolution”). The revenues and assets of THDA pledged under the 1974 General Resolution, the 1985
General Resolution, and the 2009 General Resolution, respectively, are not pledged as security for Bonds issued under
the General Resolution, including the Offered Bonds. See Appendix E for descriptions of the 1974 General Resolution,
the 1985 General Resolution, and the 2009 General Resolution.

THDA may, in the future, elect to issue bonds under the General Resolution or under the 1974 General
Resolution, the 1985 General Resolution and/or the 2009 General Resolution.



No assurances can be given as to whether THDA may elect to issue bonds under any one of the referenced general
resolutions in the future or which of the referenced general resolutions may be selected. Any mortgage loans and
investments financed with the proceeds of any new bonds issued under any of the referenced general resolutions,
except for the General Resolution, and the revenues therefrom will not be pledged to the payment of Bonds under the
General Resolution, including the Offered Bonds.

THDA has no taxing power. The Offered Bonds are not a debt, liability or obligation of the State or of any
political subdivision thereof except THDA. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State, or of any
other political subdivision thereof is pledged for the payment of principal or interest on the Offered Bonds.

THDA expects that the proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be used to: (i) finance (1) first lien single-family
Program Loans (or participations therein) for single- family, owner-occupied housing (one to four dwelling units), and
(2) Program Securities (or participations as defined in the General Resolution, see Appendix D hereto therein) backed
by such Program Loans and guaranteed by Federal Mortgage Agencies (collectively, the “Issue 2022-3 Program
Securities”); (ii) pay capitalized interest, if any; (iii) pay Costs of Issuance, Underwriters’ Fees and other transaction
costs; and (iv) make a deposit to the Bond Reserve Fund, if required. See “APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS.”
The terms and conditions of Program Loans and Program Securities are described herein under the caption
“‘RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS - Description of Residential Finance Program Loans”, in Appendix B-2,
and in Appendix G.

All Program Loans, or participations therein, to be financed with lendable proceeds of the Offered Bonds or
backing the Issue 2022-3 Program Securities, will be made in accordance with the then existing Program Loan
Procedures of THDA. The current Program Loan Procedures are described or otherwise referred to in Appendix G.
Program Securities (as defined in the General Resolution, see Appendix D hereto) purchased with lendable proceeds
of the Offered Bonds are anticipated to be guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”)
and/or Fannie Mae, formerly the Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) (respectively, “GNMA
Securities” and “Fannie Mae Securities”), but may be guaranteed or insured by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (“Freddie Mac”) or other Federal Mortgage Agency. See “Appendix B-2- Certain Information Relating to
GNMA, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Certain Program Securities” for additional information regarding GNMA
Securities and Fannie Mae Securities.

Nothing in the General Resolution requires that Program Loans not pooled into Program Securities be insured
or guaranteed or that Program Loans be first lien loans. The General Resolution provides that Program Loans to be
financed with moneys made available from the issuance of a series of Bonds shall satisfy any restrictions or covenants
applicable to such Program Loans as shall be set forth in the related Supplemental Resolution. The Issue 2022-3
Supplemental Resolution provides that the Program Loans to be financed with proceeds of the Offered Bonds shall be
first lien loans (i) insured or guaranteed or have a commitment for insurance or guarantee by (a) the United States or
any instrumentality thereof, (b) a private mortgage insurer qualified to issue such insurance or guarantee in the State
and approved by THDA (for a description of certain mortgage insurance programs, including certain conditions on
recovery and limitations on coverage, see Appendix B) or (c) any agency or instrumentality of the State authorized by
law to issue such insurance; (ii) made to borrowers who have an equity interest of at least 22% in the property based
on the lesser of appraised value or the sale price and will be secured by a first lien on a fee simple in real property
located in the State; or (iii) be pooled into Program Securities. THDA does not intend to use lendable proceeds of the
Offered Bonds to purchase Program Loans insured by private mortgage insurance. While the Issue 2022-3
Supplemental Resolution provides that all Program Loans to be financed with proceeds of the Offered Bonds shall be
first lien loans or pooled into Program Securities, no assurance can be provided that Supplemental Resolutions
adopted for future series of Bonds will not authorize the financing of Program Loans secured by subordinate liens,
including without limitation, loans for downpayment and closing cost assistance and home improvement loans.



Currently, THDA’s Program Loan portfolio under the General Resolution includes only first-lien, fixed- interest
rate, single-family Program Loans with equal monthly installments of principal and interest (the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
will be the first series of Bonds issued under the General Resolution which will also purchase Program Securities with
lendable proceeds of such Bonds). As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 23,321 Program Loans were outstanding under
the General Resolution having an aggregate outstanding principal balance of approximately $2,593,012,890. Based
on the outstanding principal balance of Program Loans as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), approximately 85.39%
were FHA insured, approximately 2.62% were VA guaranteed, approximately 1.57% were insured by private mortgage
insurance companies, approximately 6.67% were guaranteed by United States Department of Agriculture, Rural
Development (“USDA/RD”), and approximately 3.75% were uninsured (i.e. Program Loans for which the borrower has
at least a 22% equity interest in the residence on the date of closing, or at least a 25% equity interest in the residence
on the date of closing for Program Loans closed prior to July 29,1999, or Program Loans which were privately
insured at the time of closing but have since met the requirements of the Homeowner Protection Act of 1998 for
termination of private mortgage insurance). See “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS - Residential Finance
Program Portfolio Data” and Appendix B under the heading “Private Mortgage Insurance Programs”.

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (the “Trustee”), as successor in interest to U.S. Bank National
Association, is trustee and paying agent for all Bonds issued under the General Resolution; U.S. Bank Trust Company,
National Association became successor Trustee as a result of the transfer by U.S. Bank National Association of
substantially all of its corporate trust business to U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, effective January
29, 2022.

A brief description of the Offered Bonds, THDA and its Program Loans follows, together with summaries of the
terms of the Offered Bonds, and certain provisions of the Act, the General Resolution, the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental
Resolution and other activities of THDA. Such summaries do not purport to be complete and all such summaries and
references to the Act and the Issue Supplemental Resolution are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such
document, copies of which are available from THDA or the Trustee. The General Resolution is attached hereto as
Appendix D “2013 GENERAL RESOLUTION”. Certain capitalized terms utilized herein are defined in Appendix D
hereto.

DESIGNATION OF THE ISSUE 2022-3 BONDS AS SOCIAL BONDS
General

Kestrel Verifiers, a division of Kestrel 360, Inc. (“Kestrel Verifiers”) has designated the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
as “Social Bonds”. The information under the subcaptions “Social Bonds Designation” and “Independent Second Party
Opinion on Social Bonds Designation and Disclaimer” below has been provided by Kestrel Verifiers.

None of THDA, the Underwriters (as defined herein), CSG Advisors Incorporated, Kutak Rock LLP or Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP has independently confirmed or verified the information below or assumed any obligation to
ensure that the Issue 2022-3 Bonds comply with any legal or other standards or principles that may be related to
Social Bonds. THDA has designated the Issue 2022-3 Bonds as Social Bonds based solely on their designation as
Social Bonds by Kestrel Verifiers. The designation of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds as Social Bonds does not entitle the
Owner of any Issue 2022-3 Bond to any benefit under the Internal Revenue Code. Owners of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
do not have any security other than as described under “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT OF BONDS".

Social Bonds Designation

Per the International Capital Market Association (ICMA”), Social Bonds are any type of bond instrument where
the proceeds will be exclusively applied to finance or re-finance, in part or in full, new and/or existing eligible Social
Projects and which are aligned with the four core components of the Social Bonds Principles. The four core components
are: 1. Use of Proceeds; 2. Process for Project Evaluation and Selection; 3. Management of Proceeds; and 4.
Reporting.

Kestrel Verifiers has determined that: (a) the Issue 2022-3 Bonds are in conformance with the four



components of the ICMA Social Bond Principles, as described in Kestrel Verifiers’ Second Party Opinion, (the “Second
Party Opinion”) which is attached hereto as Appendix J and (b) the uses of the proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
align with the Affordable Housing, Access to Essential Services, and Socioeconomic Advancement and Empowerment
eligible project categories by financing mortgages for low- and moderate-income families.

Upon the expenditure of the proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds deposited into the Loan Fund, THDA
expects to prepare a report regarding the Program Loans allocable to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (including Program
Loans pooled into any Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) consisting of the information set forth in Appendix K — USE
OF PROCEEDS REPORT.

Independent Second Party Opinion on Social Bonds Designation and Disclaimer

For 20 years, Kestrel Verifiers has been a consultant in sustainable finance. As an Approved Verifier accredited
by the Climate Bonds Initiative (CBI), and an Observer for the ICMA Green Bond Principles, Kestrel Verifiers is qualified
to verify transactions in all asset classes worldwide for alignment with ICMA Green Bond Principles, Social Bond
Principles, Sustainability Bond Guidelines and the Climate Bonds Initiative Standards and Criteria.

The Second Party Opinion issued by Kestrel Verifiers does not and is not intended to make any representation
or give any assurance with respect to any other matter relating to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds. The Social Bond
designation provided by Kestrel Verifiers is not a recommendation to any person to purchase, hold, or sell the Issue
2022-3 Bonds and the Social Bond designation does not address the market price or suitability of the Issue 2022-3
Bonds for a particular investor and does not and is not in any way intended to address the likelihood of timely payment
of interest or principal when due.

In issuing the Second Party Opinion, Kestrel Verifiers has assumed and relied upon the accuracy and
completeness of the information made publicly available by THDA or that was otherwise made available to Kestrel
Verifiers.

DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS

General

The Offered Bonds will be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons in denominations of $5,000
principal amount and any integral multiple thereof and will be available in book-entry only form. Purchasers of Offered
Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Offered Bonds. The Depository Trust Company,
(“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Offered Bonds. The ownership of one fully
registered certificated bond, without coupons, for each maturity set forth on the inside cover page hereof, each in the
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, and
deposited with DTC via the FAST system. See Appendix F “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM” for a description of the
DTC book-entry only system.

The Offered Bonds will mature on the dates and bear interest from the date of delivery at the rates indicated
on the inside front cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the Offered Bonds accrues from the dated date of
the Issue 2022-3 Bonds and is payable on January 1, 2023, and semi-annually on each January 1 and July 1
thereafter on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The Record Date for payment of interest on the
Offered Bonds shall be the 15th day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment Date.



Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds

Sinking Fund Redemption

The Issue 2022-3 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2037, are subject to redemption in part by lot on each January 1
and July 1 beginning January 1, 2035, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof from
mandatory Sinking Fund Payments in the principal amount for each of the dates set forth below:

Sinking Fund Payments for Issue 2022-3
Term Bonds Due July 1. 2037

Amount Due Amount Due
Year January 1 July 1
2035 $ 2,065,000 $ 2,115,000
2036 2,165,000 2,215,000
2037 2,270,000 2,320,000 (maturity)

The Issue 2022-3 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2042, are subject to redemption in part by lot on each January
1 and July 1 beginning January 1, 2038, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof from
mandatory Sinking Fund Payments in the principal amount for each of the dates set forth below:

Sinking Fund Payments for Issue 2022-3
Term Bonds Due July 1. 2042

Amount Due Amount Due
Year _January 1 — July1
2038 $ 2,375,000 $ 2,435,000
2039 2,495,000 2,555,000
2040 2,620,000 2,685,000
2041 2,750,000 2,820,000
2042 2,890,000 2,960,000 (maturity)

The Issue 2022-3 Bonds maturing on July 1, 2048, are subject to redemption in part by lot on each January 1
and July 1 beginning January 1, 2043, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof from
mandatory Sinking Fund Payments in the principal amount for each of the dates set forth below:

Sinking Fund Payments for Issue 2022-3
Term Bonds Due Julv 1. 2048

Amount Due Amount Due
Year January 1 July 1
2043 $ 3,035,000 $ 3,110,000
2044 3,190,000 3,270,000
2045 3,355,000 3,435,000
2046 3,525,000 3,615,000
2047 3,705,000 3,800,000
2048 3,895,000 2,520,000 (maturity)



The Issue 2022-3 Bonds maturing on January 1, 2053 (the “PAC Bonds”), are subject to redemption in part
by lot on each January 1 and July 1 beginning July 1, 2048, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof from mandatory Sinking Fund Payments in the principal amount for each of the dates set forth
below:

Sinking Fund Payments for Issue 2022-3
PAC Term Bonds Due January 1, 2053

Amount Due Amount Due
Year January 1 July 1

2048 $ 1,470,000
2049 $ 4,095,000 4,200,000
2050 4,305,000 4,420,000
2051 4,530,000 4,650,000
2052 4,770,000 4,890,000
2053 5,015,000 (maturity)

Optional Redemption. The Issue 2022-3 Bonds maturing on and after July 1, 2032 are subject to redemption
at the option of THDA prior to their respective maturities, either as a whole or in part, at any time, on or after January
1, 2032, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption.

Special Mandatory Redemption of PAC Bonds. The PAC Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their
maturity, in whole or in part at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of such PAC Bonds to be redeemed,
plus interest accrued to the date of redemption, from amounts transferred to the Redemption Account representing
Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments (as defined below). Any Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments so deposited in the
Redemption Account shall be applied to the redemption of PAC Bonds on any Interest Payment Date commencing
January 1, 2023; provided, however, PAC Bonds may be redeemed between Interest Payment Dates on the first
Business Day of any month for which adequate notice of redemption may be given.

While any PAC Bonds remain Outstanding, Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments shall be used as follows:

FIRST, if principal prepayments on the Program Loans allocable to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (including any
Program Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) are equal to or less than 500% PSA (as defined below
under “ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING OFFERED BONDS - Average Life of PAC Bonds”), as determined by THDA,
then available Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments shall first be applied to redeem PAC Bonds up to an amount
correlating to the Planned Amortization Amount (as defined below) for the PAC Bonds and, subject to the application of
the 10-year rule as described below under the heading “— Mandatory Redemption — 10 Year Rule,” the remainder may
be applied to any purpose permissible under the Resolution, including to redeem any Bonds issued under the
Resolution, other than the PAC Bonds; and

SECOND, if principal prepayments on the Program Loans allocable to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (any Program
Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) are in excess of 500% PSA, as determined by THDA, then
available Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments up to an amount correlating to the Planned Amortization Amount
(as defined below) for the PAC Bonds shall first be applied to redeem PAC Bonds and, subject to the application
of the 10-year rule as described below under the heading “— Mandatory Redemption — 10 Year Rule,” the remainder
may be applied to any purpose permissible under the Resolution, including to redeem any Bonds issued under the
Resolution, including the PAC Bonds (any such remainder used to redeem PAC Bonds being an “Excess Principal
PAC Bond Redemption”); provided, however, that
(i) the source of an Excess Principal PAC Bond Redemption is restricted to that portion of the available Excess 2022-3
Principal Payments which is in excess of 500% PSA, and (ii) the principal amount of an Excess Principal PAC Bond
Redemption may not be an amount in excess of the then Outstanding PAC Bonds’ proportionate amount of all Issue
2022-3 Bonds then Outstanding.

“Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments” means, as of any date of computation, 100% of all regularly scheduled
principal payments and prepayments on Program Loans allocable to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (any Program Loans
pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) to the extent such regularly scheduled principal payments and
prepayments are not required to make regularly scheduled principal payments, including Sinking Fund Payments, on
the Issue 2022-3 Bonds.



“Planned Amortization Amount” means the dollar amount applicable to the PAC Bonds for each Interest
Payment Date set forth below. The Planned Amortization Amount represents the cumulative principal amount of the
PAC Bonds assumed to be redeemed from Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments as of a particular Interest Payment
Date based on receipt of principal prepayments at a 100% PSA prepayment rate for Program Loans allocable to the
Issue 2022-3 Bonds. See “ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING OFFERED BONDS — Average Life of PAC Bonds” for a
description of PSA prepayment rates.

The Planned Amortization Amounts for the Issue 2022-3 PAC Bonds (which assume (i) the full origination of
Program Loans and/or purchase of Issue 2022-3 Program Securities with proceeds allocable to the Offered Bonds in
accordance with the expected schedule for such origination and/or purchase, and (ii) receipt of principal prepayments
on the Program Loans allocable to the Offered Bonds (including any Program Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3
Program Securities) at a rate equal to 100% of the PSA prepayment rate), as of each payment date are set forth
below:

PAC Bonds Planned Amortization Schedules

PAC Bonds
Planned Amortization
Date Amount

October 28, 2022 $ 0
January 1, 2023 0
July 1, 2023 0
January 1, 2024 190,000
July 1, 2024 1,635,000
January 1, 2025 3,980,000
July 1, 2025 7,155,000
January 1, 2026 10,880,000
July 1, 2026 14,630,000
January 1, 2027 18,240,000
July 1, 2027 21,670,000
January 1, 2028 24,915,000
July 1, 2028 27,990,000
January 1, 2029 30,895,000
July 1, 2029 33,630,000
January 1, 2030 36,200,000
July 1, 2030 38,610,000
January 1, 2031 40,855,000
July 1, 2031 42,345,000

Each Planned Amortization Amount, as set forth in the table above, is subject to proportionate reduction to the
extent the PAC Bonds are redeemed from amounts on deposit in the Issue 2022-3 Bonds Subaccount of the Loan
Fund not applied to finance Program Loans.

For a description of the impact on the weighted average life of the PAC Bonds on the receipt of prepayments
on the Program Loans allocable to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (including any Program Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3
Program Securities) at various speeds, see “ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING OFFERED BONDS — Average Life of PAC
Bonds.”

Special Optional Redemption of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds, including Cross Calls. The Issue 2022-3 Bonds are
subject to redemption, at the election of THDA, in whole or in part, at any time prior to maturity, in accordance with the
provisions of the Resolution, and in an amount equal to amounts available for such purposes from (i) proceeds of the
Issue 2022-3 Bonds not expected to be applied to the financing of Program Loans as described below under the
heading “DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS — Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Redemption of Issue
2022-3 from Unexpended Proceeds”; (ii) except as otherwise described under the headings “DESCRIPTION OF
OFFERED BONDS — Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Special Mandatory Redemption of PAC Bonds”, and
“ — Mandatory Redemption — 10 Year Rule”, repayments and prepayments of the Program Loans allocated to the
Issue 2022-3 Bonds (including any Program Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) in excess of regularly
scheduled debt service payments on the Issue 2022-3 Bonds; (iii) repayments and prepayments of Program Loans
financed with the proceeds of any other Bonds issued under the



Resolution, subject to limitations contained in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the, “Code”), (iv) other
amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund of the Resolution in excess of the amounts then required for the payment of
Debt Service and Program Expenses, and (v) amounts on deposit in the Bond Reserve Fund in excess of the Bond
Reserve Fund Requirement; provided, however, that PAC Bonds are subject to redemption under clause (i) above, but
(1) are only subject to redemption under clause (ii) above as described under the heading “DESCRIPTION OF
OFFERED BONDS - Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Special Mandatory Redemption of PAC Bonds”, and
(2) shall not be subject to redemption as described in clauses (iii), (iv) and (v) above if such redemption would cause
amortization of the PAC Bonds to exceed the Planned Amortization Amount shown above in the PAC Bonds
Amortization Schedule. The Resolution permits the sale of Program Loans and Program Securities, including those
allocated to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds, and application of the sale proceeds to the redemption of Bonds (see Appendix
D “2013 GENERAL RESOLUTION?”), subject to limitations contained in the Code; however, THDA has no current
plans to sell Program Loans or Program Securities held under the General Resolution.

The date of redemption shall be determined by the Trustee upon the direction of THDA, subject to the provisions
of and in accordance with the Resolution. The Issue 2022-3 Bonds to be so redeemed shall be redeemed at a
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus interest accrued to the redemption date, if applicable;
provided, however, that the redemption price of the PAC Bonds in the event of a redemption described in clause (i) of
the preceding paragraph shall be the issue price thereof (par plus initial premium) plus accrued interest to the
redemption date. The Issue 2022-3 Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected by THDA in its sole discretion;
provided, however, that the PAC Bonds may not be redeemed in amounts in excess of their proportionate amount of
all Offered Bonds then Outstanding in the event of a redemption pursuant to clause (i) of the preceding paragraph.
See “ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING OFFERED BONDS - Prepayments” and “ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING
OFFERED BONDS — THDA Redemption Practices”.

Mandatory Redemption — 10 Year Rule. To the extent required by the Code and not already required to make
regularly scheduled principal payments on the Issue 2022-3 Bonds (including Sinking Fund Payments) or otherwise
required to be applied to the redemption of the PAC Bonds, repayments and prepayments of principal of the Program
Loans or portions thereof financed with proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds received more than 10 years after the
date of issuance of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds shall be applied to redeem Issue 2022-3 Bonds. The redemption price of
Issue 2022-3 Bonds to be so redeemed shall be 100% of the principal amount thereof plus interest accrued to the date
of redemption, if applicable. Subject to the redemption procedures under the heading “DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED
BONDS - Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Special Mandatory Redemption of PAC Bonds,” the Issue
2022-3 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by THDA in its sole discretion; provided, however, that the PAC
Bonds may be redeemed in an amount that exceeds the related Planned Amortization Amount shown above in the
PAC Bonds Planned Amortization Schedules only if there are no other Issue 2022-3 Bonds outstanding.

THDA will redeem the Issue 2022-3 Bonds in accordance with the provisions described above to the extent
required to comply with the Code. THDA reserves the right to modify the amounts and timing of redemptions at any time
to the extent the Code permits or requires such modification.

Redemption of Issue 2022-3 Bonds from Unexpended Proceeds. The Issue 2022-3 Bonds are subject to
redemption, at the election of THDA, in whole or in part on any date, from proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds not
expected to be applied to the financing of Program Loans (or participations therein). In addition, the Issue 2022-3
Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption on November 1, 2023, in the event and to the extent that there are
unexpended proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds on deposit in the Issue 2022-3 Bonds Subaccount of the Loan Fund
on October 1, 2023, provided that such redemption date may be extended, at the option of THDA, and subject to the
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution, including without limitation,
provision of a Projected Cash Flow Statement.

Notwithstanding any extension of the redemption date described above, in order to satisfy requirements of the
Code, the Issue 2022-3 Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption on April 1, 2026 to the extent any amounts
remain on deposit in the Issue 2022-3 Bonds Subaccount of the Loan Fund on March 1, 2026.

Issue 2022-3 Bonds to be redeemed from the unexpended proceeds shall be redeemed at a redemption price
of 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus interest accrued to the date of redemption, if applicable; provided,
however, that the redemption price of the PAC Bonds shall be the issue price thereof (par plus initial premium) plus
accrued interest to the redemption date.



The Issue 2022-3 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by THDA in its sole discretion subject to the above
limitations; provided, however, that the PAC Bonds may not be redeemed in amounts in excess of their proportionate
amounts of all Issue 2022-3 Bonds then Outstanding.

Selection By Lot

If less than all of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds of like maturity are to be redeemed, the particular Issue 2022-3
Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by lot in accordance with the General Resolution.

Notice of Redemption

When the Trustee shall receive notice from THDA of its election or direction to redeem Bonds and when
redemption of Bonds is required by the Resolution, the Trustee shall give notice, in the name of THDA, of the
redemption of such Bonds. Such notice shall specify the complete official name, the series (and subseries, if
applicable), the maturities, the interest rate, and the CUSIP number of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Redemption
Date and the place or places where amounts due upon such redemption will be payable (including the name, address
and telephone number of a contact person at such place(s)) and, if less than all the Bonds of any like maturity are to
be redeemed, the letters and numbers or other distinguishing marks of such Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of
Bonds to be redeemed in part only, such notice shall also specify the respective portions of the principal amount
thereof to be redeemed. In addition, if the notice of redemption is conditional, the notice shall set forth, in summary
terms, the conditions precedent to such redemption and that if such conditions shall not have been satisfied on or prior
to the redemption date, said notice shall be of no force and effect and such Bonds shall not be redeemed. Such notice
shall further state that, assuming the due satisfaction of all conditions precedent to the redemption, if any, on such date
there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the
Redemption Price of the specified portions of the principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only,
together with interest accrued to the Redemption Date, and that from and after such date interest thereon shall cease to
accrue and be payable. The Trustee shall mail a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, not less than twenty days (or in
such manner or such shorter period as required by the operational arrangements of the Central Securities Depository if
all Bonds are registered with a single Central Securities Depository) and not more than sixty days before the
Redemption Date to the registered owners of any Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last
addresses, if any, appearing upon the registry books, but receipt of such notice shall not be a condition precedent to
such redemption and failure of a Bondholder to receive such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the
redemption of other Bonds.

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be credited or applied as set forth below:

SOURCES

Par Amount of the Offered Bonds ............ccooveeueiiceeeeeeee e, $ 160,000,000.00

Original ISSUE PremiUM........coiiiiiiiiieiee sttt n 1,927,544.40

TOTAL SOURGCES ......ooiiiieie ettt e et e e e $ 161,927,544.40

USES

Loan FUNd DEPOSIt. ... .....cveiiiei e $  160,000,000.00

Deposit to Debt Service & Expense Account of the Revenue Fund................... 679,149.81

COSES Of ISSUANCE ....c.viiiiiiieiece ettt 281,000.00

UnNderwriters’ Fee. .. ..o 967.,394.59
TOTALUSES. ... i e $ 161,927,544.40




SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT OF BONDS

Security of Bonds and Sources of Payment

The Bonds are special limited obligations of THDA payable solely from the revenues and assets of THDA
pledged under the General Resolution. Subject only to the provisions of the General Resolution permitting the
application of certain monies for the purposes and under the terms set forth therein, and to the payment to the Trustee
and the Paying Agents and depositories of compensation for their services and expenses, such Bonds are secured
equally and ratably by a pledge of the following:

(@) Revenues, which include scheduled, delinquent and advance payments of principal of and interest
on Program Loans made pursuant to the General Resolution (less the amount thereof retained by the servicers
as compensation for services rendered in connection with the Program Loans and for other payments, including
those for guaranty or insurance of Program Loans and for taxes, assessments and insurance premiums) and
the net income, if any, derived by THDA from premises owned by THDA as a result of action taken in the event
of a default on a Program Loan;

(b) Non-Mortgage Receipts, which includes all interest earned or gain realized in excess of losses from
investment of the amount in any Fund or Account established under the General Resolution;

(c) All Funds and Accounts created by the General Resolution, including the Bond Reserve Fund, and
monies and securities therein (see Appendix D “2013 GENERAL RESOLUTION”); and

(d) Allright, title and interest of THDA in and to the Program Loans made or purchased pursuant to the
General Resolution.

THDA has no taxing power. The Bonds do not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the State or any other
political subdivision thereof (except THDA). Neither the full faith and credit nor taxing power of the State or of any other
political subdivision thereof is pledged for the payment of the principal of, redemption price or interest on the Bonds.
The Bonds are payable solely from the funds provided therefor pursuant to the General Resolution.

Bond Reserve Fund

The Act authorizes THDA to establish one or more reserve funds. THDA has established a Bond Reserve Fund
for the Bonds and the General Resolution provides that THDA may not issue any Bond unless the amount in the Bond
Reserve Fund is at least equal to the “Bond Reserve Fund Requirement.” The Bond Reserve Fund Requirement is the
greater of (i) an amount equal to the aggregate of the respective amounts for each series of Bonds established in the
Supplemental Resolution authorizing such series or (ii) an amount equal to 3% of the sum of (A) the then current balance
of Program Loans (other than Program Loans underlying Program Securities) and (B) any other amount on deposit in
the Loan Fund which has not been designated to provide for the payment of Costs of Issuance, capitalized interest or
the purchase of Program Securities. On the date of issuance of the Offered Bonds, the Bond Reserve Fund will contain
an amount at least equal to the Bond Reserve Fund Requirement. The Resolution requires that if, on any Interest
Payment Date or Redemption Date, there is not a sufficient amount available in the Revenue Fund and the Redemption
Fund, if applicable, to provide for interest or principal and sinking fund installments maturing and becoming due on the
Bonds, the Trustee must transfer the amount of the deficiency from the Bond Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to
make good the deficiency.

Additional Bonds

THDA is authorized to issue additional series of bonds upon the terms and conditions set forth in the General
Resolution and such bonds, when issued, shall, with the Offered Bonds and other outstanding bonds, be entitled to the
equal benefit, protection, and security of the provisions, covenants and agreements of the General Resolution, except
as otherwise described herein.

BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISKS; COVID-19; CYBERSECURITY

General

Certain external events, such as pandemics, natural disasters, severe weather, technological emergencies, riots,
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acts of war or terrorism or other circumstances, could potentially disrupt THDA’s ability to conduct its business. A
prolonged disruption in THDA’s operations could have an adverse effect on THDA'’s financial condition and results of
operations. To plan for and mitigate the impact such an event may have on its operations, THDA has developed a
Business Continuity Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan is designed to (i) provide for the continued execution of the mission-
essential functions of THDA and minimize disruption if an emergency threatens, interrupts or incapacitates THDA’s
operations, (ii) provide THDA leadership with timely direction, control and coordination before, during and after an
emergency, and (iii) facilitate the return to normal operating conditions as soon as practical based on the circumstances
surrounding any given emergency. No assurances can be given that THDA’s efforts to mitigate the effects of an
emergency or other event will be successful in preventing any and all disruptions to its operations in the event of an
emergency.

COVID-19

One such external event is the global outbreak of COVID-19 (“COVID-19”), a respiratory disease declared in
2020 to be a pandemic (the “Pandemic”) by the World Health Organization and an emergency by federal and state
governments. Since the start of the Pandemic, Presidential administrations, Congress, the Federal Reserve,
HUD/FHA (including GNMA), the Federal Housing Finance Agency (including Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac), USDA
Rural Development, VA, the Centers for Disease Control, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, and the
State of Tennessee and its Governor (by Executive Order), have enacted legislation and/or issued orders or directives
(collectively, “Governmental Actions”) to alleviate the effects of COVID-19 on homeowners, renters, landlords, servicers
and lenders and otherwise facilitate continued responses to the Pandemic. Governmental Actions have included loan
forbearance directives, moratoriums on foreclosures and/or evictions, loan modification directives, loan servicing
assistance, rental assistance, and homeownership loan assistance. Such legislation and/or orders have been extended
and/or modified, and others have expired or been enjoined. While it is generally expected that new legislation may be
enacted, new orders may be issued, and existing and new orders may be extended, modified, litigated, or allowed to
expire, no guarantee can be made with regards to the duration and/or effectiveness of any such legislation or orders.

As of August 31, 2022, THDA granted forbearance approvals for 4,271 Program Loans, with
2,614Program Loans completing forbearance by August 31, 2022, and 1,657 Program Loans in active forbearance.
The Program Loans in active forbearance and delinquent as of August 31, 2022 were approximately 5.49% of the
aggregate principal amount of Program Loans held under the 2013 General Resolution as of that date. THDA may
approve, or be required to approve, additional forbearance requests during the Pandemic. THDA, through its Volunteer
Mortgage Loan Servicing, is able to offer certain options to borrowers who wish to exit their forbearance agreement,
including partial claim assistance programs, loan modification programs (inclusive of loan term extensions, interest rate
reductions, and/or payment deferral plans), and homeownership assistance funds as described below. As of August
31, 2022, THDA, through its Volunteer Mortgage Loan Servicing, has approved loan modifications, partial claims or a
combination thereof for a total of 1,441 Program Loans held under the 2013 General Resolution.

As of August 31, 2022, foreclosure actions previously paused during the Pandemic have now resumed. THDA,
as administrator of federal Homeowner Assistance Funds made available to Tennessee (the “HAF Program”) under the
American Rescue Plan Act, implemented a pilot program (the “Pilot Homeownership Assistance Program”) to assist
delinquent borrowers of Program Loans held under the 2013 General Resolution and other mortgage loans held by
THDA (the “THDA Portfolio Loans”). The Pilot Homeownership Assistance Program provided borrowers up to $40,000
each, for past due amounts on delinquent THDA Portfolio Loans. On January 10, 2022 the full statewide HAF Program
was opened for applications. Homeowners with THDA Portfolio Loans are eligible to continue to apply for assistance in
the full statewide HAF program. The net funds available for assistance under the HAF Program, including the Pilot
Homeownership Assistance Program, aggregated $134,591,228. As of August 31, 2022, approximately $9,640,872 of
Pilot Homeownership Assistance Program and other statewide HAF Program funds has been granted to borrowers of
Program Loans held under the 2013 General Resolution. THDA has contracted with a third party to help implement the
statewide HAF Program including the Pilot Homeownership Assistance Program.
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Certain Governmental Actions have required servicers of Program Securities guaranteed by Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac to have a limited four month obligation to advance scheduled monthly principal and interest payments for
single-family mortgage loans backing such Program Securities; once a servicer has advanced four months of missed
payments on a loan, it will have no further obligation to advance scheduled payments. Loans backing any such Program
Securities which are granted forbearance pursuant to Governmental Actions will remain part of the related Program
Security during any forbearance term. THDA’s Volunteer Mortgage Loan Servicing services Program Securities
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Issue 2022-3 Program Securities and Freddie Mac as part of its secondary market
mortgage-backed securities program.

The Governmental Actions, and other future federal, state, and local measures may have both adverse and
positive effects on THDA’s operations, financial condition and bond ratings. In addition, unemployment in the State,
business closures and/or restrictions in the State and market fluctuation during the Pandemic may have an adverse
effect on existing and future loans in THDA’s portfolio. THDA continues to review the possible impacts of these
various actions and events on its operations, financial condition, and bond ratings.

At this time THDA cannot predict (i) the duration or extent of the Pandemic or any other outbreak emergency; (ii)
the duration or expansion of any foreclosure or eviction moratorium affecting THDA'’s ability to foreclose and collect on
delinquent mortgage loans; (iii) the number of mortgage loans that will be in forbearance or default as a result of the
Pandemic and subsequent federal, state and local responses thereto, including the CARES Act; (iv) whether and to
what extent the Pandemic or other outbreak or emergency may disrupt the local or global economy, real estate
markets, manufacturing, or supply chain, or whether any such disruption may adversely impact THDA or its operations;
(v) whether or to what extent THDA or other government agencies may provide additional deferrals, forbearances,
adjustments, or other changes to payments on mortgage loans; or (vi) the effect of the Pandemic on the State budget,
or whether any such effect may adversely impact THDA or its operations. The Pandemic and resulting business and
market disruptions may have an adverse effect on THDA'’s operations, financial condition or bond ratings, to an extent
that may be material.

Cybersecurity

THDA relies on a complex technology environment to conduct its operations. As a recipient and provider of
personal, private and sensitive information, THDA faces multiple cyber threats including, but not limited to, hacking,
viruses, malware, ransomware, phishing, business email compromise, and other attacks on computers and other
sensitive digital networks, systems, and assets. Housing finance agencies and other public finance entities have been
targeted by outside third parties, including technically sophisticated and well-resourced actors, attempting to
misappropriate assets or information or cause operational disruption and damage. Further, third parties, such as hosted
solution providers, that provide services to THDA, could also be a source of security risk in the event of a failure of their
own security systems and infrastructure.

THDA uses a layered approach that employs sound operational strategies and security technology solutions to
secure against, detect, and mitigate the effects of cyber threats on its infrastructure and information assets. THDA
conducts regular information security and privacy awareness training that is mandatory for all THDA staff and regularly
conducts risk assessments and tests of its cybersecurity systems and infrastructure. THDA'’s Director of Information
Technology focuses on and leads the efforts of THDA to keep its cyber assets secure, including the maintenance of a
robust Cyber Incident Response Plan.

Despite its efforts, no assurances can be given that THDA’s security and operational control measures will be
successful in guarding against any and each cyber threat and attack, especially because the techniques used are
increasingly sophisticated, change frequently, are complex, and are often not recognized until launched. To date, cyber
attacks have not had a material impact on THDA'’s financial condition, results or business; however, THDA is not able
to predict the severity of these attacks. The results of any attack on THDA’s computer and information technology
systems could impact its operations for an unknown period of time, damage THDA'’s digital networks and systems, and
damage THDA's reputation, financial performance, and customer or vendor relationships. Such an attack could also
result in litigation or regulatory investigations or actions, including regulatory actions by state and federal governmental
authorities. The costs of remedying any such damage could be substantial and such damage to THDA's reputation and
relationships could adversely affect THDA'’s ability to make loans and issue Bonds in the future.
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ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING OFFERED BONDS
General

The General Resolution requires THDA to file Projected Cash Flow Statements with the Trustee periodically in
connection with various actions THDA may take pursuant to the General Resolution including, without limitation, the
issuance of Bonds. (See Appendix D “2013 GENERAL RESOLUTION” for a description of Projected Cash Flow
Statements and the circumstances under which they are required.) A Projected Cash Flow Statement meets the
requirements of the General Resolution if it shows that sufficient amounts will be available under the General Resolution
to pay Debt Service on Bonds Outstanding under the General Resolution, including the Offered Bonds, and Program
Expenses and that the amount of all assets held under the General Resolution equals or exceeds the total liability of all
Bonds Outstanding under the General Resolution. In connection with the preparation of Projected Cash Flow
Statements, THDA makes certain assumptions concerning revenues derived from Program Loans, Program Expenses,
rate and amount of prepayments, earnings on investments, rate of origination of Program Loans, and Bond redemptions.

It is a condition to the issuance of the Offered Bonds that THDA shall have prepared and filed a Projected Cash
Flow Statement (the “Projected Cash Flow Statement”). The Projected Cash Flow Statement will be based, among
other assumptions, on the assumptions that (i) THDA originates approximately $160,000,000 of thirty year Program
Loans (or participates therein), including Program Loans pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities, bearing
interest at a weighted average interest rate of approximately 6.42%, and (ii) a deposit of $679,149.81 to the Debt
Service and Expense Account will be allocated to the Offered Bonds. The Projected Cash Flow Statement shall
evidence that, upon the issuance of the Offered Bonds, sufficient amounts will be available under the General
Resolution to pay Debt Service for all Bonds Outstanding, including the Offered Bonds. THDA believes the
assumptions to be used in connection with the preparation of the Projected Cash Flow Statement are reasonable.
THDA cannot, however, guarantee that actual results will not vary materially from such assumptions. If subsequent
events do not correspond to such assumptions, the amount of Revenues available to make payments of principal and
interest on the Bonds, including the Offered Bonds, when scheduled, may be adversely affected and the expected life
of the Offered Bonds may be affected. The global outbreak of COVID-19 and measures taken by federal, state and
local governments in response are impacting individuals and businesses in a manner that will have negative effects on
economic activity across the country and in Tennessee, including mortgage loan repayments. For descriptions of
certain of these measures and THDA'’s business continuity plan, see “BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISK; COVID-19;
CYBERSECURITY” herein.

Payments of Principal and Interest on the Bonds

The Projected Cash Flow Statement assumes that payments of principal and interest on all Outstanding Bonds
will be made, when scheduled, from scheduled payments and prepayments of principal and interest on the Program
Loans (or portions thereof) allocable to such Bonds and from other moneys available under the Resolution including,
without limitation, income expected to be derived from the investment of monies in the funds and accounts established
under the Resolution. For purposes of preparing the Projected Cash Flow Statement, it has been assumed that
scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Program Loans will be received 60 days from the date on which
they are due. Such sources of available monies may be insufficient to make such payments in the event that (i)
regularly scheduled payments on Program Loans are not made on a timely basis in accordance with their terms, (ii)
THDA incurs uninsured losses in connection with the foreclosure of Program Loans or insured losses which the
insurer does not pay,(iii) THDA is not able to finance Program Loans in accordance with its expectations, (iv) actual
investment rates on Investment Securities are less than those assumed, or (v) prepayments are not received as
anticipated to the extent the Projected Cash Flow Statement was based on an assumed level of prepayments.
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Program Loans

Certain moneys made available from the issuance of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be deposited in the Issue
2022-3 Bond Subaccount of the Loan Fund and will be used to continue THDA’s program of financing Program Loans
for single family, owner occupied residential housing for low and moderate income persons and families. Although THDA
may use amounts made available as a result of the issuance of Issue 2022-3 Bonds to finance Great Choice Program
Loans, New Start Program Loans, and Homeownership for the Brave Program Loans, THDA does not expect to use
proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds to make New Start Program Loans. In addition, THDA may use amounts made
available from the issuance of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds to finance Program Loans on a blended basis with proceeds
of other bonds of THDA, including participation interests bearing interest at 0% in order to satisfy mortgage yield
limitations of the Code. See “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS - Description of Residential Finance
Program Loans” for descriptions of the various Program Loan products and Appendix G “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE
PROGRAM LOAN ORIGINATING AND SERVICING PROCEDURES” for more information about specific program
requirements.

Program Loans are made on a continuing, first-come, first served basis by Originating Agents approved by
THDA. The Projected Cash Flow Statement assumes that Program Loans (or participations therein) financed with the
proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be first-lien, thirty-year, fixed-rate mortgages, with equal monthly installments
of principal and interest bearing interest at a weighted average loan rate of 6.42% and that Program Loans purchased
by THDA from Originating Agents will be purchased at par.

THDA'’s general policy is to maintain a steadily available supply of funds to finance program loans at competitive
interest rates. THDA generally establishes interest rates for its program loans in connection with the sale of bonds by
taking into account the maximum permitted interest rate under the Code and the spread between that rate and the then
prevailing home mortgage interest rates offered by mortgage lenders in Tennessee. THDA prefers to maintain the same
interest rates throughout the period of origination of program loans for each issue of bonds; however, THDA regularly
reviews these interest rates in light of market conditions and retains the flexibility to modify its interest rates to meet
changing needs and conditions. No assumptions can be made regarding the length of time an interest rate set by THDA
will remain available or what effect a particular interest rate will have on the origination of Program Loans.

Nonorigination of Program Loans

While THDA retains the flexibility to modify the interest rates at which Program Loans are offered, there are
circumstances under which these interest rates may not be competitive with prevailing home mortgage interest rates
offered by mortgage lenders in Tennessee. Under these circumstances, it will be more difficult for THDA to originate
Program Loans. The ability of THDA to finance Program Loans on a blended basis with proceeds of other bonds of
THDA or otherwise may also be affected by the availability of residences that meet THDA'’s acquisition cost limits and
the willingness of potential borrowers to assume potential federal recapture tax liability. Although THDA expects that all
lendable proceeds available from the Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be used to finance Program Loans, no assurance can
be given whether this will occur or the speed at which this may occur.

The last transaction that resulted in an unexpended proceeds redemption was THDA’s Homeownership
Program Bonds, Issue 1996-3 under the 1985 General Resolution. Notwithstanding past performance, no assurances
can be given that proceeds from Issue 2022-3 Bonds will be fully expended for Program Loans.

THDA began obligating against the expected lendable proceeds from the Offered Bonds on September 7,
2022. As of the close of business on September 16, 2022, THDA has obligated (including rate locks) a total
principal amount of approximately $14,159,994M of Program Loans that will be allocated to the Offered Bonds
(including Program Loans anticipated to be pooled into Issue 2022-3 Program Securities), all of which are Great
Choice Program Loans or Homeownership for the Brave Program Loans. THDA expects to reimburse itself for the full
original principal amount of the Program Loans purchased as of the day of closing the Offered Bonds, if any.

In addition to funding its single family loan production by issuing bonds, THDA has initiated a program to sell
mortgage backed securities in the secondary market. At this time, THDA does not anticipate that the sale of mortgage
backed securities in the secondary market will have a material impact on its funding of single family loans with bond
proceeds. See THDA-THDA Funds-“Secondary Market Sale of Mortgage-Backed Securities” herein for additional
information.

1) Of this amount $14,159,994 are rate locks. Historically rate locks fail to result in a Program Loan at a rate of approximately 20%.
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Changes in Federal or State Law

Legislation affecting the Offered Bonds and THDA'’s single family mortgage loans may be considered and
enacted by the United States Congress or the Tennessee General Assembly. No assurance can be given that the
consideration or enactment of any such legislation will not have an adverse effect on the value of, the timing or amount
of payments of, or the security for the Offered Bonds or other risks.

The United States Congress passed the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the
“Dodd-Frank Act”) in 2010, and may pass additional legislation impacting the origination and servicing of mortgage
loans. Likewise, the Tennessee General Assembly may enact legislation relating to mortgage loan origination and
servicing. The Dodd-Frank Act has not, to date, had a material adverse effect on THDA'’s single family mortgage
program, including its ability to originate new single family mortgage loans, to collect payments under single family
mortgage loans and to foreclose on property securing single family mortgage loans; however, additional legislation, if
enacted, or regulations, if promulgated to effectuate the purposes of the Dodd-Frank Act or other state or federal
regulations, could have an adverse effect on THDA'’s activities.

A number of state regulatory authorities have taken action in recent years against certain loan originators and
servicers for alleged violations of state laws. Certain of those actions prohibit those servicers from pursuing foreclosure
actions. In response to alleged abusive lending and servicing practices, the State of Tennessee could enact legislation
or implement regulatory requirements that impose limitations on the ability of mortgage loan servicers to take actions
(such as pursuing foreclosures) that may be essential to service and preserve the value of the single-family loans. Any
such limitations that applied to the THDA’s single-family loans could adversely affect the THDA’s ability to collect
amounts due on such loans and could impair the value of such loans.

Prepayments

THDA, from time to time, receives monies from (i) partial or complete prepayment of Program Loans (which is
permitted, without penalty) or (ii) termination of Program Loans prior to their respective final payment date due to default,
sale, condemnation or casualty loss. In addition, the Resolution permits the sale of Program Loans, including those
allocated to the Offered Bonds, and application of the sale proceeds to the redemption of Bonds (see Appendix D “2013
GENERAL RESOLUTION”), subject to limitations contained in the Code; however, THDA has no current plans to sell
Program Loans. The rate at which such prepayments, if any, of Program Loans (including Program Loans backing
Issue 2022-3 Program Securities) will be received by THDA cannot be predicted. The actual rate of such prepayments
may be influenced by a variety of economic, social and other factors, including proposed legislative and regulatory
changes and there is no reliable basis for predicting the actual average life of the Program Loans. Consequently,
THDA makes no assumptions or representations as to the factors that will affect the rate of prepayments, if any, or the
relative importance of such factors and their potential impact on the actual average life of Program Loans and the
expected life of the Offered Bonds. To the extent THDA is required or elects to redeem the Offered Bonds, it is
probable that the Offered Bonds will have a shorter life than their stated maturity.

Subject to the requirements of the General Resolution, the resolutions to be adopted in connection with other
series of Bonds under the General Resolution and the Code, such prepayments may (i) be required to pay regularly
scheduled debt service to the extent a series of the Bonds was based upon an assumed prepayment level; (ii) be used
to redeem Bonds of the related series; (iii) be used to redeem Bonds of any series; or (iv) be recycled into additional
Program Loans. Further, prepayments attributable to the Program Loans financed with the proceeds of the Offered
Bonds (including Program Loans backing Issue 2022-3 Program Securities), or other Bonds, or portions thereof, may
or will be applied to redeem Offered Bonds as described herein under “DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS —
Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Special Mandatory Redemption of PAC Bonds,” “- Special Optional
Redemption of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds, including Cross Calls” and “- Mandatory Redemption — 10- Year Rule”.

THDA Redemption Practices

The Resolution specifies, and the resolutions to be adopted in connection with other series of Bonds under the
General Resolution will specify, when THDA is required to redeem Bonds and when THDA may elect to redeem Bonds.
See “DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS - Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds.”
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To the extent THDA has discretion to redeem Bonds and select the maturities and series to be redeemed, THDA’s
general redemption policy had been to first redeem those Bonds bearing the highest interest rate; however, due to
universal cap implications and economic decisions by THDA, THDA'’s current general redemption policy is to call term
bonds on a pro-rata basis within bond issues or to redeem the highest coupon serial bonds were doing so would reduce
debt service requirements under the Resolution when possible. Adherence to either policy may be affected by a series
of factors including, but not limited to, (i) certain restrictions or limitations imposed by the Code including, but not limited
to, 10-year rule requirements and universal cap considerations; (ii) certain limitations or restrictions imposed by the
Resolution and/or resolutions adopted in connection with other series of Bonds under the General Resolution including,
but not limited to, redemption provisions; (iii) economic considerations; (iv) cash flow requirements; and (v) the amount of
prepayments and other monies available to THDA for optional redemption of Bonds.

These factors are regularly considered in determining which Bonds may be selected for redemption. No
assumptions or representations can be made as to how or which of these factors or whether any other factors will affect
THDA'’s determination, from time to time, regarding particular Bonds selected for redemption.

Payment of Program Expenses

The General Resolution authorizes payment of all Program Expenses from the Debt Service and Expense
Account of the Revenue Fund established under the Resolution, so long as the Debt Service and Expense Account and
the Bond Reserve Fund contain amounts sufficient to meet the requirements of the General Resolution. See Appendix D
“2013 GENERAL RESOLUTION?” for a description of Program Expenses. THDA expects to use funds on deposit in the
Debt Service and Expense Account of the Revenue Fund to pay Costs of Issuance, Underwriters’ fees, initial Trustee’s
fees, and other similar costs associated with the Offered Bonds and may continue to do so in connection with future
Bond issues or may pay such costs and fees from Bond proceeds in future transactions. In addition, THDA expects to
pay certain Program Expenses, including ongoing Trustee’s fees, servicing release premiums, servicing fees, foreclosure
fees and expenses and other similar costs, from the Debt Service and Expense Account of the Revenue Fund. THDA
expects to pay other Program Expenses and all operating and administrative costs and expenses that are not Program
Expenses from other THDA bond resolutions and from other resources available to THDA. No assurances can be
provided that THDA will not withdraw funds from the General Resolution in the future to pay all Program Expenses or
other operating and administrative costs and expenses. For more information about the payment of Program Expenses
and other operating and administrative costs of THDA, see “THDA — THDA Funds”. THDA does not currently receive
funds from the State of Tennessee for operating and administrative costs and expenses.

The General Resolution requires certain conditions to be met prior to any withdrawal of funds from the lien of
the General Resolution. See Appendix D, Section 5.3(F) for a description of these conditions.

Investment Assumptions

Estimated available investment income attributable to the Offered Bonds is calculated assuming that (i) existing
Investment Securities in the Revenue Fund and the Bond Reserve Fund pay scheduled interest and principal payments
until the earlier of their call date or maturity date; (ii) proceeds of Investment Securities and other receipts in the Revenue
Fund are invested at 0% per annum; and (iii) funds on deposit in the Issue 2022-3 Bond Subaccount of the Loan Fund
prior to origination of Program Loans, are invested at a rate of 0% per annum.

There can be no assurance that the Investment Securities will provide the investment income projected. If THDA
experiences losses or delays in payments on the Investment Securities, there may be insufficient funds to make
payments of principal and interest on the Offered Bonds when scheduled.

Average Life of PAC Bonds

The term “weighted average life” refers to the average amount of time that will elapse from the date of issuance
of a security until each dollar of principal of such security will be repaid to the investor. The weighted average life of the
PAC Bonds will be influenced by the rate at which principal of the Program Loans allocated to the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
(including Program Loans backing 2022-3 Program Securities) is repaid. Principal payments of Program Loans may be
in the form of scheduled amortization or prepayments (for this purpose, the term “prepayment” includes prepayments
and liquidations due to default or other dispositions of the Program Loans, including payments on FHA mortgage
insurance, VA guarantees, and private mortgage insurance policies). Prepayments on mortgage loans are commonly
measured by a prepayment standard or model.

The model used in the following discussion is the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association

16



(formerly known as the Public Security Association (“PSA”)) prepayment standard or model (commonly referred to as
the “PSA Prepayment Model”).

The PSA Prepayment Model is based on an assumed rate of prepayment each month of the then unpaid
principal balance of a pool of mortgage loans, beginning at the inception of each mortgage loan. The PSA Prepayment
Model starts with 0.2% annualized prepayment rate in the first month, increases the prepayment rate by 0.2% in each
succeeding month until the thirtieth month (when a 6.0% annualized prepayment rate is reached) and then assumes a
constant prepayment rate of 6.0% per annum of the unpaid principal balance for the remaining life of the mortgage
loans.

Prepayment speeds are commonly referred to as a percentage of the PSA Prepayment Model. For instance, “0%
PSA” assumes no prepayments of principal on the Program Loans. “25% PSA” assumes the principal of Program Loans
will prepay one-quarter as fast as the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model. “50% PSA” assumes
the principal of Program Loans will prepay one-half as fast as the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment
Model. “75% PSA” assumes the principal of Program Loans will prepay three-quarters as fast as the prepayments rates
for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model. “100% PSA” assumes the principal of Program Loans will prepay as fast as
the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model. “200% PSA” assumes the principal of Program Loans
will prepay at a rate twice as fast as the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model. “300% PSA”
assumes the principal of Program Loans will prepay at a rate three times as fast as the prepayments rates for 100% of
the PSA Prepayment Model. “400% PSA” assumes the principal of Program Loans will prepay at a rate four times as fast
as the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model. “600% PSA” assumes the principal of Program
Loans will prepay at a rate five times as fast as the prepayments rates for 100% of the PSA Prepayment Model.

There is no assurance, however, that prepayments of the principal on Program Loans will conform to any
particular level of the PSA Prepayment Model. The rate of principal payment on pools of mortgage loans is influenced
by a variety of economic, geographic, social and other factors, including the level of mortgage loan interest rates, the
rate at which homeowners sell their homes or default on their mortgage loans and changes in mortgagors’ housing
needs, job transfers, unemployment and mortgagors’ net equity in the mortgage properties. In general, if prevailing
interest rates fall significantly, the Program Loans are likely to be subject to higher prepayment rates than if prevailing
rates remain at or above the interest rates on the Program Loans. As homeowners move or default on their mortgage
loans, the houses are generally sold and the mortgage loan prepaid, although under certain circumstances, the
mortgage loans may be assumed by a new buyer. Because of the foregoing influences upon prepayments and since
the rate of prepayment of principal of Bonds will depend on the rate of repayment (including prepayments) of the
Program Loans, the full repayment of any Bonds is likely to occur earlier, and could occur significantly earlier, than its
stated maturity.

The Program Loans allocable to the Offered Bonds (including Program Loans backing 2022-3 Program
Securities) may be terminated prior to final maturity as a result of prepayment, default, sale, condemnation, casualty
loss or noncompliance. In addition, matters discussed under “Changes in Federal or State Law” above could have an
effect on terminations. Consequently, it is impossible to predict the timing of the repayment of principal of the Program
Loans allocable to the Offered Bonds (including Program Loans backing 2022-3 Program Securities) and hence the
weighted average life of the PAC Bonds. THDA has provided for the redemption of the PAC Bonds as described under
the heading “DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS - Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds—Special Mandatory
Redemption of PAC Bonds”, and the weighted average lives of the PAC Bonds set forth below have been calculated
based upon various assumptions, including assumptions that (i) 100% of the money deposited in the Issue 2022-3
Bond Subaccount of the Loan Fund is applied to finance Program Loans and/or Issue 2022-3 Program Securities, (ii)
Excess 2022-3 Principal Payments will be used to redeem PAC Bonds only on Interest Payment Dates, and (iii) the
PAC Bonds will be redeemed only in the Planned Amortization Amounts as described under the heading
“‘DESCRIPTION OF OFFERED BONDS — Redemption Provisions for Offered Bonds — Special Mandatory Redemption
of PAC Bonds” and will not otherwise be redeemed in whole or in part. There can be no assurance that such
assumptions will in fact prove accurate. See “BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISKS; COVID- 19; CYBERSECURITY”
herein.

17



Projected Weighted Average Lives for PAC Bonds

PAC Bond

Average Life

PSA Speed Jinvears)
0% 27.8
25 21.9
50 13.0
75 6.5
100 5.0
200 5.0
300 5.0
400 5.0
500 5.0

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY
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RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM BONDS

Bonds Outstanding Under the Resolution

As of August 31, 2022, THDA has issued $4,452,275,000 total original principal amount of bonds under the
General Resolution, of which $2,643,260,000 (unaudited) were outstanding as of August 31, 2022, as shown below:

Issue of

Bonds

Issue 2013-1
Issue 2013-2
Issue 2014-1
Issue 2014-2
Issue 2015-1
Issue 2015-2
Issue 2016-1
Issue 2016-2
Issue 2016-3
Issue 2017-1
Issue 2017-2
Issue 2017-3
Issue 2017-4
Issue 2018-1
Issue 2018-2
Issue 2018-3
Issue 2018-4
Issue 2019-1
Issue 2019-2
Issue 2019-3
Issue 2019-4
Issue 2020-1
Issue 2020-2
Issue 2020-3
Issue 2020-4
Issue 2021-1
Issue 2021-2

Issue 2021-3AB

Issue 2022-1
Issue 2022-2

TOTAL

Dated

May 30, 2013
November 19, 2013
May 29, 2014
November 20, 2014
June 11, 2015
October 15, 2015
May 18, 2016
October 18, 2016
November 17, 2016
March 30, 2017
June 27, 2017
September 28, 2017
December 19, 2017
March 29, 2018
June 12, 2018
September 6, 2018
November 15, 2018
March 21, 2019
June 27, 2019
September 30, 2019
December 11, 2019
March 25, 2020
May 28, 2020

July 16, 2020
October 28, 2020
April 28, 2021
September 30, 2021
December 16, 2021
April 26, 2022

June 22, 2022

Issued

$ 215,905,000

121,300,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
150,000,000
175,000,000
125,000,000
125,000,000

62,000,000
100,000,000
175,000,000

99,900,000

99,900,000

99,900,000
160,000,000
149,900,000
225,000,000
175,000,000
200,000,000
150,000,000
200,000,000
200,000,000
108,500,000
145,000,000
145,000,000
149,990,000

99,990,000
170,000,000

175,000,000
149,990,000

$4,452,275,000
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Amount
Outstanding as of
August 31, 2022

$ 32,740,000
27,355,000
36,350,000
47,085,000
50,560,000
61,135,000
54,315,000
55,915,000
13,975,000
34,710,000
79,910,000
56,915,000
59,380,000
55,030,000
93,350,000
95,520,000
135,955,000
118,005,000
144,280,000
112,620,000
151,120,000
156,640,000

60,740,000
125,125,000
132,505,000
144,370,000

98,405,000

84,650,000
174,610,000
149,990,000

2,643,260,000

Original
Bond Yield

3.13%
3.59
3.23
2.91
3.31
3.25
2.68
2.68
297
3.15
294
3.03
2.90
3.33
3.37
3.47
3.58
3.34
2.58
2.38
2.51
222
249
242
1.92
1.95
1.95
1.74

3.18
4.03



Origination Experience

THDA'’s experience from May 30, 2013, to August 31, 2022 (unaudited), regarding origination of Program
Loans(® from lendable proceeds of Bonds issued under the General Resolution since May 30, 2013, is shown in the
following table:

Program Loans Financed®

Issue of Lendable as of August 31, 2022 Weighted Average
Bonds Proceeds® Amount % Interest Rate®)
Issue 2013-1 136,268,395 136,268,395 100.00% 4.11%
Issue 2013-2 78,421,003 78,421,003 100.00 4.60
Issue 2014-1 119,728,634 119,728,634 100.00 4.08
Issue 2014-2 111,820,000 111,820,000 100.00 3.74
Issue 2015-1 131,880,843 131,880,843 100.00 4.05
Issue 2015-2 133,950,000 133,950,000 100.00 4.09
Issue 2016-1 92,340,000 92,340,000 100.00 3.98
Issue 2016-2 91,685,000 91,685,000 100.00 3.87
Issue 2016-3 ©) 0 N/A N/A N/A
Issue 2017-1 102,200,000 102,200,000 100.00 4.15
Issue 2017-2 128,090,000 128,090,000 100.00 4.61
Issue 2017-3 90,500,000 90,500,000 100.00 4.62
Issue 2017-4 75,660,000 75,660,000 100.00 4.40
Issue 2018-1 102,600,000 102,600,000 100.00 4.39
Issue 2018-2 143,525,000 143,525,000 100.00 4.61
Issue 2018-3 151,916,000 151,916,000 100.00 4.61
Issue 2018-4 211,450,000 211,450,000 100.00 4.67
Issue 2019-1 162,700,000 162,700,000 100.00 4.82
Issue 2019-2 170,950,000 170,950,000 100.00 4.19
Issue 2019-3 142,000,000 142,000,000 100.00 3.77
Issue 2019-4 170,870,000 170,870,000 100.00 3.49
Issue 2020-1 200,000,000 200,000,000 100.00 3.75
Issue 2020-2 0 N/A N/A N/A
Issue 2020-3 134,500,000 134,500,000 100.00 3.93
Issue 2020-4 158,600,000 158,600,000 100.00 2.90
Issue 2021-1 158,640,000 158,640,000 100.00 2.83
Issue 2021-2 101,770,000 101,770,000 100.00 297
Issue 2021-3 31,395,000 31,395,000 100.00 2.82
Issue 2022-1 217,205,000 217,204,554 100.00 3.04
Issue 2022-2 149,990,000 134,500,000 89.67 5.40

(1) See “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS—Description of Residential Finance Program Loans” for more information about Program
Loans.

(2) Excludes proceeds that must be lent at 0% interest as participations in other Program Loans.

(3) Only Program Loans that have closed are included. Program Loans for which THDA has issued commitments are not included.

(4) The weighted average interest rate relates only to new loans made from the lendable proceeds of the related bond issue and does not include

any transferred loans derived from any refunding component of the related bond issue.

(5) Issue 2016-3 and Issue 2020-2 bond proceeds were used to refund prior bonds of THDA, with no new lendable proceeds.

THDA began obligating against the expected lendable proceeds from the Offered Bonds on September 7,
2022. As of the close of business on September 16, 2022, THDA has obligated (including rate locks) a total principal
amount of approximately $14,159,994(Y of Program Loans that will be allocated to the Offered Bonds, all of which are
Great Choice Program Loans or Homeownership for the Brave Program Loans. THDA expects to reimburse itself
for the full original principal amount of the Program Loans purchased as of the day of closing the Offered Bonds,
if any.

1) Of this amount $14,159,994 are rate locks. Historically rate locks fail to result in a Program Loan at a rate of approximately 20%.
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RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS
Description of Residential Finance Program Loans
General

THDA generally offers a primary loan program and may, from time to time, offer certain special loan programs.
THDA Household Income Limits and THDA Acquisition Cost Limits for all loan programs are set in compliance with
Code requirements and related IRS regulations and rulings. Household Income Limits and Acquisition Cost Limits may
be further restricted for certain special loan programs. The current THDA Acquisition Cost Limits range from $300,000
to $375,000 depending on geographic location. THDA Household Income Limits were last established as of August 2,
2021, to range from $68,600 to $118,020 depending on household size and geographic location. See Appendix G for a
description of Residential Finance Program Loan Procedures related to Code requirements.

All Program Loans, or participations therein, to be financed with lendable proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds
will be made in accordance with the Program Loan Procedures described in Appendix G. Nothing in the General
Resolution requires that Program Loans be insured or guaranteed or that Program Loans be first lien loans. The General
Resolution provides that Program Loans to be financed with moneys made available from the issuance of a series of
Bonds shall satisfy any restrictions or covenants applicable to such Program Loans as shall be set forth in the related
Supplemental Resolution. The Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution provides that the Program Loans to be financed
with proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds shall be first lien loans (i) insured or guaranteed or have a commitment for
insurance or guarantee by (a) the United States or any instrumentality thereof, (b) a private mortgage insurer qualified
to issue such insurance or guarantee in the State and approved by THDA (for a description of certain mortgage
insurance programs, including certain conditions on recovery and limitations on coverage, see Appendix B) or (c) any
agency or instrumentality of the State authorized by law to issue such insurance; or (ii)) made to borrowers who have
an equity interest of at least 22% in the property based on the lesser of appraised value or the sale price and will be
secured by a first lien on a fee simple estate in real property located in the State. THDA does not expect to use
lendable proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds to purchase participations in Program Loans insured by private
mortgage insurance. While the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution provides that Program Loans, or participations
therein, to be financed with proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds shall be first lien loans, no assurance can be provided
that Supplemental Resolutions adopted for future series of Bonds will not authorize the finance of Program Loans
secured by subordinate liens, including without limitation, loans for downpayment and closing cost assistance and
home improvement loans.

Since June 15, 2015, THDA has applied underwriting standards for Program Loans made after that date that,
among other things include a minimum credit score of 640 for all borrowers and a required monthly debt to income ratio
that does not exceed 45%. Program Loans financed prior to such date were underwritten under different underwriting
standards. THDA may, from time to time, initiate certain special limited programs for which some of these requirements
may be waived. Additionally, THDA will not purchase a mortgage loan that is in a flood zone and is not insured for
flood damage.

On or before September 30, 2013, the THDA primary loan program included Great Rate loans, Great Advantage
loans, Great Start loans and Homeownership for the Brave loans, all as described below. On and after October 1, 2013,
the THDA primary loan program has included Great Choice Program Loans and Homeownership for the Brave Program
Loans, all as described below.

On or before September 30, 2013, THDA provided downpayment and closing cost assistance in the form of a
grant that was available in connection with Great Start and Great Advantage Program Loans. Higher interest rates on
these two Program Loan types reimbursed THDA for the grants made. Since October 1, 2013, THDA has provided
downpayment and closing cost assistance in the form of Great Choice Plus Program Loans as described below. As of
March 1, 2017, THDA began providing additional downpayment and closing cost assistance through its Hardest Hit
Fund Down Payment Assistance program as described below.

Great Choice Program Loans

Since October 1, 2013, THDA has made Great Choice Program Loans available to eligible borrowers. Great
Choice Program Loans are thirty year, fixed interest rate loans, fully amortized with full documentation and secured by
a first lien on the property purchased. The interest rate for Great Choice Program Loans is set at a rate which results in
the yield on such Program Loans not in excess of 1.125% above the yield on the related issue of bonds. The current
interest rate for Great Choice Program Loans is 6.50%.
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See Appendix B for a summary of the mortgage insurance or guarantee programs applicable to these Program
Loans.

Great Choice Plus Loans

Since October 1, 2013, THDA has made Great Choice Plus loans available to eligible borrowers. Great Choice
Plus loans are loans for downpayment and closing cost assistance and are available at the election of eligible borrowers
in connection with Great Choice Program Loans.

As of September 13, 2021, and thereafter, Great Choice Plus Loans have 2 downpayment and closing cost
assistance options, Great Choice Plus — Deferred and Great Choice Plus — Payment. The Great Choice Plus — Deferred
loan is a $6,000, 0% interest loan with a 30 year term, due on sale or refinance. The Great Choice Plus — Payment is a
loan in an amount equal to 6% of the sales price, fully amortizing over 15 years with an interest rate the same as the
first lien loan.

From July 1, 2020 to September 12, 2021, Great Choice Plus Loans were fifteen year, fully amortizing second
lien loans with an interest rate equal to the interest rate on the first lien loan. Monthly payments are required and each
such loan is due on sale or refinance. The amount of assistance provided will be $6,000 for loans in an original
principal amount less than $150,000 and $7,500 for loans in an original principal amount of $150,000 or higher.

From October 3, 2016 to June 30, 2020, Great Choice Plus Loans were thirty year, 0% interest rate, second
lien loans in a principal amount up to 5% of the purchase price of the property purchased. No monthly payments were
due, but each Great Choice Plus loan is due on sale or refinance and the amount due will be the full original principal
amount of the loan, provided, however, that the full original principal amount will be forgiven at the end of the thirty
year term.

Prior to October 3, 2016, Great Choice Plus Loans were made with the following terms: From October 1,
2013, to September 30, 2014, they were ten year, 0% interest rate loans with a principal amount equal to 4% of the
purchase price of the property purchased. From October 1, 2014, to September 30, 2016, Great Choice Plus Loans
were 0% interest, deferred, forgivable second lien loans with a fifteen year term. During the first ten years of the term,
no monthly payments are due, but each Great Choice Plus loan will be due on sale and the amount due will be the full
original principal amount of the loan. From years eleven through fifteen, the Great Choice Plus loans with these terms
will be forgiven at twenty percent per year and the amount due on sale will be reduced by the forgiven amount. These
Great Choice Plus loans are secured by a second lien on the property purchased, are due on sale and are not
assumable.

At the election of THDA, Great Choice Plus loans may be financed with proceeds of Bonds issued under the
Resolution or from other resources available to THDA, including, without limitation, excess funds under the 1974
General Resolution, the 1985 General Resolution, or the 2009 General Resolution. To date, all Great Choice Plus
loans have been financed with other resources available to THDA. THDA does not expect that Great Choice Plus
loans will be funded with the proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds. No assurance can be provided, however, that
Supplemental Resolutions adopted for future series of Bonds will not authorize the financing of Great Choice Plus
loans with the proceeds of such Bonds. In the event proceeds of future series of Bonds are used to fund Great Choice
Plus loans, such loans will constitute Program Loans, will be subject to the lien of the General Resolution and will be a
portion of the sources of payment of and security for the Bonds.

Hardest Hit Fund Down Payment Assistance

In March 2017, THDA began providing $15,000 in downpayment assistance from the fifth round of federal
Hardest Hit Fund funding (“HHF-DPA”) to eligible borrowers who qualify for THDA Great Choice loans and who are
purchasing existing homes in an approved ZIP Code in Tennessee. HHF-DPA is secured by a second deed of trust for
a ten year term. HHF-DPA does not bear interest, and there are no monthly payments, but it is due on sale. HHF-DPA
is forgiven at 20% per year in years six through ten. A THDA approved Homebuyer Education course is also required.
As of August 7, 2019, all funds for HHF-DPA were exhausted.
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New Start Program Loans

New Start Loan Program Loans are designed to promote the construction of new homes for very low-income
Tennesseans. New Start Loan Program Loans are delivered through non-profit organizations with established programs
for the construction of single family housing for low and very low income households. The non-profit organization selects
the homebuyer, determines eligibility, constructs the home, provides homebuyer education, originates, processes and
closes the New Start Program Loan. New Start Program Loans are serviced by THDA d/b/a Volunteer Mortgage Loan
Servicing, New Start Program Loans have loan terms up to thirty years and are secured by a first lien on the property
purchased. A 0% interest rate is available to borrowers who have a maximum family income of 60% of the higher of the
state or county median income, with a maximum loan amount equal to the lesser of 75% of the value of the property or
$140,000. As of August 1, 2021, the maximum loan amount was increased to $200,000 for Maury, Williamson,
Davidson, Rutherford, Wilson and Sumner Counties. An interest rate equal to one-half of the current interest rate for
Great Choice Program Loans is available to borrowers who have a maximum family income of 70% of the higher of the
state or county median income, with a maximum loan amount equal to the lesser of 75% of the value of the property or
$140,000. All other THDA Program Loan requirements remain applicable.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 326 New Start Program Loans, with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $10,642,947 were outstanding under the General Resolution. Although THDA may use amounts
made available as a result of the issuance of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds to finance New Start Program Loans, THDA
does not expect to use proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds to make New Start ProgramLoans.

Homeownership for the Brave

Homeownership for the Brave Program Loans are available to eligible borrowers at a “2-percentage point
reduction on the otherwise applicable loan program. Active and retired members of the military and reservists (180 days
active duty) and spouses, and surviving spouses of qualified veterans are all eligible to receive this reduction. Eligible
borrowers will also be eligible for Great Choice Plus loans.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 650 Homeownership for the Brave Program Loans, with an aggregate
principal balance of approximately $99,601,152 were outstanding under the General Resolution. THDA may continue
to finance Homeownership for the Brave Loans, from time to time, from the proceeds of the Issue 2022-3 Bonds as
well as from the proceeds of other Bonds.

Disaster Relief and Economic Recovery Mortgage Program

THDA made Disaster Relief and Economic Recovery Mortgage Program Loans from funds available under the
1974 General Resolution. In connection with Issue 2022-3 Bonds issued under the General Resolution, certain of these
Disaster Relief and Economic Recovery Program Loans became transferred program loans allocable to the Issue 2013-
1 Bonds under the General Resolution.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 112 Disaster Relief Program Loans, with an aggregate principal balance
of approximately $4,624,003 were outstanding under the General Resolution. THDA no longer makes loans of this

type.
Great Rate/Great Advantage/Great Start Program Loans

Great Rate Program Loans, Great Advantage Program Loans, and Great Start Program Loans were available
to qualified borrowers prior to October 1, 2013. Great Rate Program Loans, Great Advantage Program Loans, and Great
Start Program Loans were thirty year, fixed interest rate loans, fully amortized, with full documentation, and secured by
a first lien on the property purchased. Interest rates for each type of Program Loan were established at rates which
resulted in a blended yield on such Program Loans not in excess of 1.125% above the yield on the related issue of
Bonds. THDA also provided downpayment and closing cost assistance in the form of a grant in connection with Great
Start and Great Advantage Program Loans. Higher interest rates on these two Program Loan types reimbursed THDA
for the grants made.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 2,735 Great Rate Program Loans with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $143,942,227, 135 Great Advantage Program Loans with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $9,819,875 and 2,635 Great Start Program Loans with an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $183,083,403 were outstanding under the General Resolution. THDA no longer makes loans of this

type.
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START Program Loans

From September 1993 to December 1998, THDA offered the Special Targeted Affordable Rate for Tennessee
Program (the “START Program”) using recycled prepayments received under the 1974 General Resolution and certain
bond proceeds from bonds issued under the 1974 General Resolution and the 1985 General Resolution; through a
series of refundings, certain START Program Loans are allocated to the General Resolution. First lien START Program
Loans under the General Resolution had a 5.5% interest rate, were made to borrowers who earned $17,000 or less per
year and who purchased their first home for $44,000 or less. After October 1, 1997, borrowers who earned $18,500 or
less per year and who purchased their first home for $47,500 or less were eligible for first lien START Program Loans
at a 5.5% interest rate. Except for the more restrictive income and acquisition cost limitations, all other requirements of
THDA’s Homeownership Program applied.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 334 START Program Loans having an aggregate principal balance of
approximately $2,460,897 were outstanding under the General Resolution. THDA no longer makes loans of thistype.

Residential Finance Program Portfolio Data

General

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 23,321 Program Loans for single family owner-occupied housing having an
aggregate outstanding principal amount of approximately $2,593,012,890 were outstanding under the General

Resolution. These Program Loans had an approximate remaining weighted average maturity of 306.28 months and an
approximate weighted average interest rate of 4.05%.

Program Loans By Type of Insurance or Guarantee

The following table summarizes, as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), the types of insurance or guarantee for
the outstanding Program Loans:

Percent of Total Outstanding
Type of Program Number of Outstanding Number of Balance of
Loan Made by THDA™ Program Loans Balance® Program Loans® Program Loans®
FHA Insured.............cocvneennen. 19,914 $ 2,269,898,456 85.39% 87.54%
VA Guaranteed....................... 611 87,871,258 2.62 3.39
Privately Insured..................... 367 24,985,881 1.57 0.96
USDA/RD Guaranteed............. 1,555 162,677,639 6.67 6.27
Uninsured............occoeiiiiinni, 874 47,579,655 3.75 1.83
TOTAL 23,321 $ 2,593,012,890¢4) 100.00 % 100.00 %™

(1) See Appendix B for more information about FHA insurance, VA and USDA/RD guarantees and private insurance for Program Loans. See
“RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS—Description of Residential Finance Program Loans” for adescription of types of Program Loans.

(2) 22% minimum equity interest by borrower at time of closing if closed on or after July 29, 1999, or 25% minimum equity if closed prior to July 29,
1999. Also includes Program Loans which were privately insured at the time of closing but have since met the requirements of the Homeowner
Protection Act of 1998 for termination of private mortgage insurance.

(3) Rounded figures.
(4) Rounded total.

Privately Insured Program Loans

Beginning in June 1994, only private mortgage providers rated at least ‘AA’ by Standard & Poor’s Rating
Services (“S&P”) are permitted to provide private mortgage insurance coverage for conventional, privately insured
Program Loans. Since January 2, 2009, THDA has not purchased conventional, privately insured loans that have not
been pooled into Program Securities because no private mortgage insurers, since January 2, 2009, have or have had
ratings of at least ‘AA’ by S&P. Should any private mortgage insurers regain a rating of at least ‘AA’ from S&P, THDA
will reconsider whether to resume purchasing conventional loans that have not been pooled into Program Securities.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, certain Program Loans allocated to Bonds under the General Resolution, either upon
their direct transfer to the General Resolution or upon the refunding of other THDA obligations, are privately insured
and are shown under the heading “Privately Insured” in the chart above. In addition, THDA has conventional, privately
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insured Program Loans that were made prior to January 2, 2009, outstanding under the Resolution that were insured
by private mortgage insurers who are not currently rated at least ‘AA’ by S&P.

Each private mortgage insurer insuring conventional, privately insured Program Loans is authorized by the
Tennessee Commissioner of Commerce and Insurance to do business in the State of Tennessee and was approved by
THDA.

THDA makes no representation regarding the financial condition of any of the private mortgage insurance
companies or their ability to make full and timely payment to THDA of claims on Program Loans on which losses are
incurred. Recent rating agency reviews of private mortgage insurers may be indicative of some future inability of private
mortgage insurers generally to fulfill in full their obligations, if and when required upon a mortgage default, to make
timely payments on policies. Any failure to make timely payments on the private mortgage insurance policies may disrupt
the flow of revenues available for the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), 366" privately insured Program Loans having an aggregate balance of
approximately $24,932,202 were outstanding under the General Resolution. As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), THDA
had the following information regarding the private mortgage insurers for of these privately insured Program Loans:

Percent of Total Outstanding
Name of Private Number of Outstanding Number of Balance of
Mortgage Insurer Program Loans Balance® Program Loans® Program Loan ©)
Arch MI@) 63 $ 4,384,614 0.27% 0.17%
Genworth Mortgage Insurance Corp. (GE) 160 11,155,676 0.69 0.43
MGIC 121 8,313,810 0.52 0.32
PMI Mortgage Insurance Company 1 26,377 0.00 0.00
Radian 4 46,167 0.02 0.00
Republic Mortgage Insurance 17 1,005,558 0.07 0.04
TOTAL 366 $ 24,932,202¢% 1.57 %" 0.96 %

(1) Purchased United Guaranty Residential Insurance Co.
(2) Rounded figures.
(3) Rounded total
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Program Loan Interest Rates

The following table summarizes, as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), the interest rates of the outstanding Program

Loans:
Percent of Total
Mortgage Number of Outstanding Number of Outstanding
Rates (%) Program Loans™ Balance @ Program Loans® Balance @

0.00-1.99 362 $ 11,571,158 1.55% 0.45%
2.00-2.99 1,537 272,733,690 6.59 10.52
3.00-3.49 1,952 324,867,205 8.37 12.53
3.50-3.99 4,988 651,688,089 21.39 25.13
4.00-4.49 3,059 355,961,052 13.12 13.73
4.50-4.99 6,354 692,311,119 27.25 26.70
5.00-5.49 1,162 91,387,945 4.98 3.52
5.50-5.99 1,708 124,578,139 7.32 4.80
6.00-6.49 841 35,712,419 3.61 1.38
6.50-6.99 635 19,151,411 2.72 0.74
7.00-7.49 444 10,185,574 1.90 0.39
7.50-7.99 224 2,156,447 0.96 0.08
8.00-8.49 52 693,305 0.22 0.03
8.50-8.99 2 7,285 0.01 0.00
9.00-9.49 1 8,050 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 23,321 $2,593,012,890 © 100.00 %® 100.00 %®

(1) See “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS—Description of Residential Finance Program Loans” for a description of types of
Program Loans.

(2) Rounded figures.
(3) Rounded total.

Delinquency and Foreclosure Process; Loan Modifications; Real Estate Owned by THDA

For all Program Loans, THDA tracks (i) exceptions to normal, expected monthly payments; (ii) individual
Program Loan balances; and (iii) remittances based on automated data received directly from its Servicers. THDA uses
this data to calculate delinquency rates and foreclosures. Those Program Loans for which two payment dates have
passed with no payment received by the last business day of the month in which the second payment was due are
considered 60 to 89 days past due. Those Program Loans for which three or more payment dates have passed with no
payments received by the last business day of the month in which the third payment was due are considered 90 or more
days past due. The status of Program Loans to borrowers who are in bankruptcy is fixed beginning at the time bankruptcy
proceedings commenced. The definitions used by THDA to calculate delinquency rates and foreclosure rates are
consistent with those used by the Mortgage Bankers Association of America (“MBA”).

THDA, through Volunteer Mortgage Loan Servicing, manages delinquencies by working with borrowers in an
attempt to avoid defaults and by communicating directly with borrowers who are delinquent. THDA supports counseling
programs for delinquent as well as prospective borrowers. These counseling services are provided by lenders, non-
profit organizations and social service agencies located throughout the State. THDA maintains an inventory of housing
counseling services, reviews materials used, and encourages grant recipients to provide counseling. THDA is
participating in the new FHA Advance Loan Modification program that aims to reduce principal and interest monthly
payments by 25% on defaulted loans due for 3 or more payments by lowering the interest rate to the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation’s Primary Mortgage Market Survey (“PMMS”) and extending the term to 360 months. Covid-
19 modification does not require financial back-up from the borrower to prove ability to pay and does not require a trial
payment plan. The FHA modified interest rate is to be the PMMS rate without the previously allowed addition of 25 basis
points. THDA is following the new Covid-19 modification options in accordance with insurer guidelines with the exception
of exceeding 360 term and exceeding the original principal balance.

Upon completion of the foreclosure process, THDA may hold title to properties previously financed by Program
Loans (“Real Estate Owned”). THDA expects to convey Real Estate Owned to the relevant insurer or guarantor of the
underlying Program Loans or to otherwise sell Real Estate Owned. Sale proceeds or claims paid by the insurer or
guarantor are deposited in the Debt Service and Expense account of the bond issue from which the foreclosed loan
was originally
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funded. As of August 31, 2022, THDA held title to 10 Real Estate Owned properties with a related Program Loan
balance of approximately $1,077,659 under the General Resolution. Foreclosure actions and new forbearance
requirements have been impacted by federal legislation in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic; see “COVID-19

(Business Disruption Risk)” herein.

Delinquencies and Foreclosures as of August 31, 2022

The following information regarding delinquencies includes Program Loans in forbearance, and the following
information regarding foreclosures does not include Program Loans for which foreclosure actions have been paused.
See “BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISKS; COVID-19; CYBERSECURITY — COVID-19” for certain information regarding
Program Loans in forbearance or for which foreclosure actions have been paused

The overall delinquency rate for Program Loans that were sixty (60) to eighty-nine (89) days past due was
1.94%, based on a total of 23,321 Program Loans as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited).

Delinquency rates by loan type for Program Loans that were sixty (60) to eighty-nine (89) days past due as of
August 31, 2022 (unaudited), compared with the delinquency rates reported for Tennessee by MBA in its
National Delinquency Survey, by loan type, for fixed rate mortgages for the quarter ending June 30, 2022, are shown

in the following table:

60 TO 89 DAYS PAST DUE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022

Program Loans MBA®)

Type of Outstanding % of Total Number by % of Total Number by
Mortgage Number Balance(" Type of Program Loan Loan Type

FHA Insured...................... 409 $ 43,988,925 2.05% 1.26 %%

VA Guaranteed.................. 8 1,143,119 1.31 0.53

Privately Insured................ 7 430,848 1.91 0.3864)

USDA/RD Guaranteed........ 18 1,201,286 1.16 ©

Uninsured.............coeeen... 10 470,174 1.14 ®

TOTAL 452 $ 47,234,353@

(1) Rounded figures.

(2) Rounded total.

(3) MBA data for Tennessee for the quarter ending June 30, 2022.
(4) FHA fixed rate mortgage loans

(5) Prime fixed rate mortgage loans.

(6) MBA does not report data in these categories.

The overall delinquency rate for Program Loans that were ninety (90) days past due was 6.96%, based on a
total of 23,321 Program Loans as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited).
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Delinquency rates by loan type for Program Loans that were ninety (90) days past due as of August 31, 2022
(unaudited), compared with the delinquency rates reported for Tennessee by MBA in its National Delinquency Survey,
by loan type, for fixed rate mortgages for the quarter ending June 30, 2022, are shown in the following table:

90 DAYS OR MORE PAST DUE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022

Program Loans

Type of Outstanding

Mortgage Number Balance("
FHA Insured...................... 1,452 $ 167,011,401
VA Guaranteed.................. 26 2,920,580
Privately Insured................ 16 1,331,511
USDA/RD Guaranteed........ 95 8,399,751
Uninsured...............c........ 34 1,933,957
TOTAL 1,623 $ 181,597,199

Rounded figures.
Rounded total.
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3) MBA data for Tennessee for the quarter ending June 30, 2022.
FHA fixed rate mortgage loans.
5) Prime fixed rate mortgage loans.
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MBA does not report data in these categories.

% of Total Number by
Type of Program Loan

7.29%

4.26
4.36
6.11
3.89

MBA®)

% of Total Number by
Loan Type
3.08 %"
212
0.98G)
(6)
(6)

The overall rate of Program Loans in foreclosure was 0.19%, based on a total of 44 out of 23,321 Program

Loans in foreclosure as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited).

The foreclosure rate by loan type for Program Loans in foreclosure as of August 31, 2022 (unaudited),
compared to the percent of principal amount of loans in foreclosure reported for Tennessee by MBA in its National

Delinquency Survey, by loan type, for the quarter ending June 30, 2022, are as follows:

IN FORECLOSURE AS OF AUGUST 31, 2022

Program Loans

Type of Outstanding

Mortgage Number Balance(")
FHA Insured...................... 36 $ 2,994,225
VA Guaranteed.................. 3 475,686
Privately Insured................ 0 0.00
USDA/RD Guaranteed........ 2 139,688
Uninsured.............c.coeeeee. 3 199.194
TOTAL 44 $ 3,808,793

Rounded figures.
Rounded total.
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)
)
3) MBA data for Tennessee for the quarter ending June 30, 2022.
4) FHA fixed rate mortgage loans.
(5) Prime fixed rate mortgageloans.
(6) MBA does not report data in these categories.
Q]

% of Total Number by
Type of Program Loan

0.18%

0.49
0.00
0.13
0.34

MBA®)

% of Total Number by
Loan Type
0.77 %"
0.46
0.246)
®)
®)

Does not include Real Estate Owned property (See“-Delinquency and Foreclosure Process; Real Estate Owned by THDA”) above

Foreclosure actions and forbearance requirements have been impacted by recent federal, state, and local actions
in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic. See “BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISKS; COVID-19; CYBERSECURITY”

herein. For additional historic data regarding delinquencies and foreclosures, see Appendix .
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM
Consolidated Revenues and Net Position

The following table summarizes consolidated revenues and net position for the Residential Finance Program
for the five most recent years and for the nine months ended March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021. Data in the table
is expressed in thousands and is taken from THDA's audited financial statements as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, and 2017, and from unaudited financial information of THDA for the nine months
ended March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021

Nine Months Ended Year Ended
March 31 June 30
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Residential Finance Bond Group 2022 2021 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
REVENUES:
Interest on Mortgages $ 78840 $ 85436 $ 113,504 $ 104,431 $ 85013 § 62207 S 49208
Investment Income:
Interest . 934 507 745 4,167 4,505 3,152 1,617
Net Increase (decrease) in the
Fair Value of Investments (6,081) (760) (657) 1,377 4,486 (1,736) (792)
Fees and Other Income - - - 103 168 724 853
73,693 85,183 113,592 110,078 94,172 64,437 50,976
EXPENSES:
Interest 51,386 57,497 76,185 72,287 56,057 40,142 30,542
Issuance Cost 1,762 2,205 3,348 4,996 5,583 3,812 3,602
Mortgage Servicing Fees - - - - 423 4,748 3,857
Other 850 961 1,246 1,331 1,654 1,254 970
53,998 60,663 80,779 78,614 63,717 49,956 38,971
Excess of Revenues over Expenses 19,695 24,520 32,813 31,464 30,455 14,481 12,005
Net Position at beginning of period 357,833 355,512 355,512 248,563 194,764 176,030 116,295
Other Transfers 20,821 (8,226) (30,492) 75,485 23,344 4,253 47,730
Net Position at end of period $.398,349 $.371,806  $.357,833  $_355,512 $_248,563 $.194,764  $_176,030
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Investments

THDA'’s non-mortgage investments of funds held under the General Resolution consist of Investment Securities
as authorized in the Resolution. THDA solicits bids in an effort to obtain the highest available yield with consideration
given to maintaining a balanced portfolio. As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), the General Resolution investment
portfolio was placed as follows:

Short Term™" Long Term®

Iypes of Investments —Amount —Amount
Federal Home Loan Bank NOteS ........cceeveveeeeecieeeeeeeee $183,175,982 $ 93,244,036
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Notes........... 19,632,833 7,700,326
Fannie Mae NOtES ............euueerieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 0 29,091,860
United States Treasury Bonds.............ccoovviiiiiinann. 0 5,731,365
TOTAL. ..o $202,808,815 $ 135,767,588

As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), amounts in the Bond Reserve Fund, a portion of the General Resolution
investment portfolio described above, were invested as follows:

Short Term(" Long Term®

Types of Investments ——Amount -Amount _
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes.........c.coceeeeveeeveveeeen. $ 4,969,778 $ 65,758,158
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Notes.......... 4,863,548 7,243,253
Fannie Mae NOtES..........c.cccevueeeveeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 0 25,250,778
United States Treasury Bonds.............coovvieiiinann. 0 5,731,365
TOTAL e $ 9,833,326 $103,983,555

(1) Short term investments include cash equivalents and investments that mature in one year or less.
(2) Long term investments include investments that mature in more than one year regardless of call features.

THDA

Purpose and Organization

THDA is a body, politic and corporate, and a political subdivision and instrumentality of the State. THDA was
established in 1973 by the Act for the purpose, among other things, of raising funds through the issuance of its bonds
and notes to assure a steady flow of production of new housing units for lower and moderate income persons and
families. To carry out its public purposes, THDA has various powers under the Act including, without limitation, powers
relating to the issuance of bonds or notes and the financing of residential housing in the State.

In accordance with Tennessee law, state entities, including THDA, are subject to periodic review by the General
Assembly to evaluate the necessity for their continued existence. THDA'’s existence has been continued until June 30,
2022. On November 10, 2021, the Judiciary and Government Joint Evaluation Committee of the Government
Operations Committee of the General Assembly held a hearing regarding the continued existence of THDA and
unanimously recommended that THDA'’s existence be continued for an additional five years. Legislation to continue
the continued existence of THDA to effectuate this recommendation is expected to be taken up by the General
Assembly in early 2022.

Under the Act, THDA may have bonds and notes outstanding in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding
$4,000,000,000. As of August 31, 2022 (unaudited), THDA has bonds and notes outstanding in an aggregate principal
amount of $2,687,510,000 as calculated in accordance with the Act.

Board of Directors

THDA is governed by a board of directors. The Comptroller of the Treasury, the Secretary of State, the State
Treasurer, the Commissioner of the Department of Finance and Administration, and a Staff Assistant to the Governor
serve as ex officio board members of THDA. The Act provides that six board members be appointed by the Governor
from among the following groups: retail building material supply, manufactured housing, home building, mortgage
banking, licensed real estate brokers, local public housing authority, local government and qualifying non-profits. The
Act also provides for a board member to be appointed by the Speaker of the State Senate, a board member to be
appointed by the Speaker of the State House of Representatives, one at-large board member appointed by the Governor
who is knowledgeable about the problems of inadequate housing conditions in Tennessee and any board members as
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may be required by applicable federal law or regulation. Any change in the status or profession of an appointed board
member does not affect the position or term of that board member. The Executive Director of THDA serves as Secretary
to the board.

Board members (other than ex officio members and the federally required resident member) are appointed for
four year terms, serve until their successors are duly appointed and qualified, and receive no compensation except for
reimbursement of expenses. Certain board members may be affiliated with institutions which may originate or service
Program Loans on behalf of THDA. One of the appointed board members is designated by the Governor to serve as
Chairman. The Chairman’s term extends until the date of expiration of his or her term or a date six months after expiration
of the term of the Governor designating such Chairman.

The name, term of office and principal occupation of the current members of the Board of Directors(") are shown

below:
N I Expi Principal O i
Jim Bryson(@ ©) Commissioner, Department of Finance and
Administration
Dan Springer June 30, 2024 Deputy Operations Manager,
City of Memphis, TN
Tre Hargett® January, 2025 Secretary of State

David H. Lillard, Jr.@

Vacant

Matt McGauley, Chair

Austin McMullen

Erin Merrick®

Jason Mumpower®

Rick Neal, Vice Chair

Tennion Reed

Christine Rhea

Todd Skelton

John K. Snodderly

(1) Board members serve until their successors are duly appointed and qualified.

(2) Exofficio member.

(3) Serves at pleasure of the Governor.

January, 2023

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2024

June 30,2023

@)

January, 2023

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2023
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State Treasurer

President and CEO Fidelity Trust Company
Chattanooga, TN

Member, Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
Nashville, TN

Counsel to the Governor Nashville, TN

Comptroller of the Treasury

Senior Vice President, Pinnacle Financial
Partners, Memphis, TN

Knoxville Renaissance
Knoxville, TN

President Mortgage Investors Group,
Knoxville, TN

Chief Legal Counsel, Acquisitions Group, LLC
Knoxville, TN

Executive Director, LaFollette Housing Authority

LaFollette, TN



Executive Staff Members

THDA employs a staff of approximately 260 persons, which includes professionals in various fields relating to
housing and mortgage lending. Executive staff members involved with Program Loans include:

Ralph M. Perrey — Executive Director since 2012. Formerly, Fannie Mae (2000-2012); Office of Tennessee
Governor Don Sundquist (1995-1999); Office of U.S. Representative 7t District Tennessee (1987-
1994). B.S., Frostburg (MD) State University.

Bruce Balcom - Chief Legal Counsel since 2021. THDA employee since 2002. Formerly Law Office of Bruce
Balcom (1996-2002). B.A. & M.A., Trevecca Nazarene University; J.D., Vanderbilt University.

Charity Miles Williams — Assistant Chief Legal Counsel since 2021. THDA employee since 2017. Tennessee
Fair Housing Council (2015-2017); Legal Aid of Middle Tennessee and the Cumberlands (2015);
Legal Aid of East Tennessee (2009-2015). B.S., Tennessee State University; J.D. & M.P.A,
University of Tennessee.

Wayne Beard, C.P.A. — Director of Finance since 2002. THDA employee since 1985. B.S., Tennessee
Technological University.

Joseph W. Brown, Jr., C.P.A. — Controller since 2003. THDA employee since 1992. Formerly, Comptroller of
the Treasury of Tennessee, Division of State Audit (1990-1992); Lorenz Creative Services (1984—
1990). B.S., East Tennessee State University.

Steve Fisher — Director of Mortgage Loan Administration since 2018. THDA employee since 2016. Formerly,
West Virginia Housing Development Fund (1989-2016). B.S., The Ohio State University; M.B.A., West
Virginia Graduate College. Licensed Mortgage Loan Originator (2009).

Lindsay Hall — Chief Operating Officer of Single Family Programs since 2015. THDA employee since 2010.
Formerly, A Better Way Realty, Inc. (2009); William E. Wood at the Mall (2008-2009); Wells Fargo
Home Mortgage (2000-2007); Charter Mortgage (1999); Aztec Mortgage (1997-1999); First Security
Bank, N.A. (1994-1997); Sivage Thomas Homes (1993-1994); NVR Homes, Inc. (1988-1993);
PaineWebber Mortgage Finance Co. (1986-1988). Licensed Residential Real Estate Appraiser (2008);
VA Licensed Real Estate Salesperson (2008-2010); Licensed Mortgage Loan Originator (2010). B.S.,
Middle Tennessee State University.

Trebia Johns — Director of Mortgage Loan Servicing since February, 2019. THDA employee since 2016.
Formerly, Ingram Industries, Nashville, Tennessee (2016); Green Tree Servicing, Goodlettsville, TN
(1991-2015).

Gathelyn (Gay) Oliver, C.P.A. - Director of Internal Audit since 2013. Formerly, Tennessee Department of
Human Services (2010-2013); Randa Solutions (2009-2010); Beacon Technologies (2007-2009);
BellSouth (1999-2007); Tennessee Department of Revenue (1988-1997, 1998-1999); Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation (1997-1998). B.B.A., Middle Tennessee State University,
M.B.A., Vanderbilt University Owen Graduate School of Management.

Trent Ridley — Chief Financial Officer since 2006. THDA employee since 2006. Formerly, Tennessee
Department of Health (2000-2006); Tennessee Rehabilitative Initiative In Correction (1999-2000);
Service Merchandise (1997-1998); National Auto Truckstops, Capital Accounting (1995-1997);
Tennessee Department of Finance & Administration (1990-1995). B.B.A., Middle Tennessee State
University.

THDA'’s principal office is located at 502 Deaderick Street, 3" Floor, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0200, and its

telephone number is (615) 815-2200. THDA has regional offices in four (4) locations elsewhere in the State for the
purpose of administering the Housing Choice Voucher rental assistance program.
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THDA Funds
Statutorily Created Funds

In 1988, the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee (the “State”) amended the Act to provide, among
other things, for the creation of the Housing Program Fund and the Assets Fund, which funds are financially separate
from the General Resolution and all of the other general bond resolutions and mortgage loan programs of THDA.

The Housing Program Fund is the vehicle used by THDA to fund non-mortgage programs not otherwise funded
through federal programs. Essentially, all revenues of THDA derived from sources other than the General Resolution or
other bond resolutions are deposited into the Housing Program Fund. Amounts in the Housing Program Fund currently
include investment income from the Housing Program Fund, federal funds received by THDA for the administration of
federal programs, and fees charged by THDA in connection with its non-mortgage programs. Amounts in the Housing
Program Fund are not pledged as security for the Offered Bonds.

The Assets Fund is a segregated fund of THDA that originally contained assets transferred in 1989 from the
1974 General Resolution in accordance with its terms, together with related investment earnings, but which presently
has a balance of $0. Amounts in the Assets Fund, if any, are not pledged as security for the Offered Bonds.

Prior Transfers from THDA

The Constitution of the State requires, for current operations, that expenditures for any fiscal year not exceed
the State’s revenues and reserves, including the proceeds of any debt obligations, for that year. When faced with budget
deficits in the past, the State has called upon THDA and its resources, together with resources of other departments,
agencies and organizations in state government, to provide funds to the State General Fund to balance the State budget.
The following is a description of these occurrences in relationship to THDA.

As of June 30, 1995, $15,000,000 in THDA’s Housing Program Reserve Fund was transferred to the State
General Fund to assist in balancing the State budget for fiscal year 1994-1995.

As of June 30, 1998, $43,000,000 was transferred from THDA to the State General Fund to assist in
balancing the State budget for fiscal year 1997-1998. The $43,000,000 transferred from THDA to the State General
Fund came from the following resources of THDA: (i) $15,459,157 from state tax revenues previously directed to the
Housing Program Fund; (ii) $5,028,761 from the Housing Program Reserve Fund; and (iii) $22,512,082 from the Assets
Fund. In addition, in conjunction with the transfer from the Housing Program Reserve Fund described in clause (ii), the
Housing Program Reserve Fund was statutorily abolished.

Amendments to the Act in 1999 and in 2000, temporarily, then permanently, redirected to the State General
Fund, all tax revenue previously directed by the Act to THDA for the HOUSE Program, a grant program no longer
administered by THDA. As a result of the permanent redirection of these state tax revenues, no state tax revenues
currently are appropriated to THDA.

Additionally, as of June 30, 2002, $35,367,449.26 was transferred from THDA’s Assets Fund to the State
General Fund to assist in balancing the State budget for fiscal year 2001-2002. The remaining balance of the Assets
Fund, approximately $1,387,000 of mortgage loans, was not required to be liquidated and the proceeds transferred.
THDA subsequently transferred these mortgage loans to the General Fund of the 1974 General Resolution, which
reduced the balance in the Assets Fund to $0.

No additional resources of THDA have been redirected or transferred to the State General Fund to close out
any fiscal year since the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if projected State budget needs outstrip actual or projected revenues, the State
may seek additional sources of funds or seek to realize program savings through reductions or more efficient delivery
of services; however, THDA cannot predict whether or not this will occur or, if it does, what actions may be proposed or
eventually taken and what effect, if any, such actions may have on THDA. If action is taken to redirect or transfer THDA
resources to the State General Fund, such amounts could include THDA resources that are not pledged to any bonds
of THDA, as well as any available excess revenues eligible for withdrawal under THDA bond resolutions, including the
General Resolution. No assurance can be made that the current ratings on the Bonds or other bonds of THDA can be
maintained in the event funds are withdrawn from THDA bond resolutions, including the General Resolution.
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Payment of THDA QOperating Expenses, Including Program Expenses

THDA currently receives no funds from the State of Tennessee for operating and administrative expenses.
THDA is authorized to pay all operating and administrative expenses, including certain Program Expenses of the
General Housing Finance Program, with funds available therefor from THDA bond resolutions, including the General
Resolution, and from other resources available to THDA. THDA may pay certain expenses, such as Costs of Issuance,
Underwriter’s fees, initial Trustee’s fees, and other similar costs from amounts on deposit in the Debt Service and
Expense Account of the Revenue Fund. THDA currently expects to continue to pay certain Program Expenses, including
ongoing Trustee’s fees, servicing fees, foreclosure fees, and other similar costs from the Debt Service and Expense
Account of the Revenue Fund. THDA expects to pay other Program Expenses and all operating and administrative costs
and expenses that are not Program Expenses from THDA bond resolutions, including the General Resolution, and from
other resources available to THDA. From this combination of resources, THDA believes it will have sufficient resources
to pay Program Expenses and other THDA operating and administrative costs and expenses. Certain actions by the
General Assembly of the State of Tennessee may affect future payment of operating and administrative expenses.
Regardless of THDA's best efforts and in the event of additional transfers to the State, however, THDA could become
reliant on State appropriations for the funding of THDA operations. No assurances can be given as to the amount
of appropriation that may be available at any time.

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
General Information

THDA employees are authorized to participate in the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (“TCRS”), a
defined benefit pension plan, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-23-115(21). The general
administration and responsibility for the proper operation of TCRS are vested in a twenty member Board of Trustees.
The Treasury Department, a constitutional office in the legislative branch of state government, is responsible for the
administration of TCRS, including the investment of assets in the plan, in accordance with state statute and in
accordance with the policies, rules, and regulations established by the Board of Trustees. Information about TCRS is
available on the Tennessee Department of Treasury website at https://treasury.tn.gov/Retirement/Information-and-
Resources/TCRS-Overview-and-Self-Service

The TCRS covers three (3) large groups of public employees; (1) state employees (including THDA employees)
and higher education employees; (2) teachers; and (3) employees of certain local governments. There are 58,913 active
members in TCRS in the state and higher education employee group at June 30, 2021. This total includes 309
employees of THDA who are members of TCRS.

The State of Tennessee is ultimately responsible for the financial obligation of the benefits provided by TCRS
to state employees (including THDA employees) and higher education employees participating in the Legacy Pension Plan
to the extent such obligations are not covered by employee contributions and investment earnings. The Hybrid
Retirement Plan provided to state employees (including THDA employees) and higher education employees hired after
June 30, 2014 includes provisions to control employer contributions and unfunded liabilities. As such, plan provisions
of the Hybrid Retirement Plan are automatically adjusted when employer contributions and/or unfunded liabilities exceed
statutory limits. The obligation is funded by employer contributions as determined by an actuarial valuation for the
defined benefit plan or contributions to a defined contribution plan.

By statute, an actuarial valuation of TCRS is to be conducted at least once in each two year period. The purpose
of the actuarial valuation is to determine the financial position of the plan and to determine the appropriate employer
contribution rate called “actuarially determined contributions (ADC)”. The funding policy adopted by the TCRS Board
of Trustees provides for an actuarial valuation to be conducted as of June 30 of each year.

Retirement Plan for Employees Hired Prior to July 1, 2014
(“Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan”)

Employees hired prior to July 1, 2014 participate in a defined benefit plan as a condition of employment. The
benefit accrual formula is 1.575% under the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan. Eligibility to
retire is age sixty (60) or thirty (30) years of service. Vesting is 5 years. Employees do not contribute to the plan. Retirees
are entitled to cost of living adjustments after retirement. The actual amount of the increase is based on the consumer
price index, up to a maximum of 3%.
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Retirement Plan for Employees Hired on or after July 1, 2014
(“State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan”)

As authorized by Public Chapter 259, Acts of 2013, employees first hired on or after July 1, 2014, participate in a
retirement plan consisting of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Employees contribute 5% of salary
to the defined benefit plan. Employees also contribute 2% of salary to the defined contribution plan unless the employee
opts out of making such contribution. The total employer cost for the two plans will be limited to 9% of salary with an
overall 4% targeted to the defined benefit plan (minimum set by statute) and 5% to the defined contribution plan.

The defined benefit accrual formula under the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan will be 1%.
Eligibility to retire is age sixty-five (65) or the rule of ninety (90) (where age and service equals 90) under the plan.
Vesting is 5 years. Retirees are entitled to cost of living adjustments after retirement. The actual amount of the increase
is based on the consumer price index, up to a maximum of 3%.

The defined benefit component of the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan has automatic cost
controls and automatic controls over unfunded accrued liability. Within the retirement plan, there is a stabilization reserve
created for any employer contributions that exceed the ADC that will be utilized to control cost and unfunded liabilities.
Effective July 1, 2018, all future stabilization reserve contributions are held in a separate trust outside of TCRS for the
benefit of each employer that participates in the stabilization reserve trust. The automatic controls are based on the
results of the actuarial valuation. Control features include utilizing funds in the stabilization reserve (if any), limiting retiree
cost of living adjustments, shifting future employer contributions from the defined contribution plan to the defined benefit
plan, requiring additional employee contributions, and adjusting benefit accruals. The control features only apply to the
State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan and do not apply to the Closed State and Higher Education
Employee Pension Plan.

Actuarial Data for the Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Employees Hired Prior to July 1, 2014

For employees hired prior to July 1, 2014, state agencies contribute to TCRS at the rates shown below based
on salary. General state employees do not contribute to this plan.

Legacy Retirement Plan

Actuary Study performed as of date 06/30/2020 6/30/2021
Contribution Period 7/1/21-6/30/22 7/1/22-6/30/23
General State Employee 20.50% 21.88%
Public Safety Officer 24.28% 25.66%
Judicial Employee 25.94% 26.00%
Consolidated State Employee Rate 20.65% 22.03%

Additionally, an actuarial valuation is performed to determine the TCRS financial position in order to provide
information related to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. At June 30, 2022
(measurement date of June 30, 2021), the net pension asset for the state and higher education employee group based
on the market value of assets was $611.8 million, resulting in a plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability of 103.30%.
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Actuarial Data for the Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Employees Hired on or after July 1, 2014

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, an actuarial valuation is performed to determine the total employer
contribution rate as well as the actuarially determined contribution (ADC) and the stabilization reserve rate shown below.
General state employees contribute 5% to this plan.

Hybrid Retirement Plan

Actuary Study performed as of date 6/30/2020 6/30/2021
Contribution Period 7/1/21-6/30/22 7/1/22-6/30/23
General State Employee

Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate (ADC) 1.86% 2.48%
Stabilization Reserve Trust Rate (SRT) 2.10% 1.47%

Total General State Employee Rate 3.96% 3.95%
Public Safety Officer 4.80% 4.85%
Judicial Employee 7.08% 8.22%
Consolidated State Employee Rate 4.00% 4.00%

Additionally, an actuarial valuation is performed to determine the TCRS financial position in order to provide
information related to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. At June 30, 2022
(measurement date of June 30, 2021), the net pension asset for the state and higher education employee group based
on the market value of assets was $84.7 million, resulting in a plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension
liability of 121.71%.

THDA Employer Contributions for Pensions (Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution Plan)

For THDA, the employer contribution rate for employees hired before July 1, 2014, stated as a percentage of
salary, is as follows: 20.50% and 21.88% for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 and for the period July 1,
2022 through June 30, 2023 respectively. For employees first hired after June 30, 2014, the employer rate is 8.96% for
the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 and 8.95% for the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023
(combined rate for defined benefit plan and defined contribution plan).

THDA's actual and estimated contributions for the pension plans are reflected in the following table:

THDA
THDA Employer
Fiscal Year Employer Total Salary Employer Contributions Percentage
ended Contribution of THDA Contributions to DC of THDA

June 30 Rate Employees to TCRS (Open Plan) Budget
2023 21.88/9.00%" $24,448,000 $3,168,430(" $603,811 2.13%"
2022 20.50/9.00%™" 21,208,900 2,304,636 754,537 1.96%
2021 20.23/9.00%®? 17,437,441 2,611,029 499,939 1.58
2020 19.66/9.00%@ 17,270,089 2,523,399 439,355 1.99
2019 19.23/9.00%@ 16,031,733 2,026,516 347,409 2.14
2018 18.87/9.00%@ 14,498,364 1,945,832 262,903 1.97
2017 15.02/9.00®? 13,396,776 1,577,092 183,030 1.53
2016 15.03/9.00@ 11,965,554 1,681,407 100,999 1.38
2015 15.02/9.00? 11,569,902 1,673,881 28,731 1.21
2014 15.03 11,721,300 1,761,711 1.19

(1)  Estimated; final amount anticipated to be lower due to unfilled positions, staff turnover and salaries at less than the maximum permitted.
(2) Varies depending on plan the employee is enrolled in.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the salary of THDA employees totaled $20,075,558, which represents
0.61% of the $3.3 billion of salary for all state and higher education employees in TCRS.
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Defined Contribution Program
Defined Contribution Plan for employees hired prior to July 1, 2014

A voluntary defined contribution plan is provided to state employees and higher education employees giving
them the opportunity to accumulate supplemental retirement income on a tax advantaged basis. The program offers
employees two plans, a 457 plan and a 401(k) plan. The contributions to the 401(k) plan can be made to both traditional
and/or Roth plans.

Defined Contribution Plan for employees hired on or after July 1, 2014

A defined contribution plan for state employees and higher education employees entering service on or after
July 1, 2014, is a component of the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan. By statute, employer
contributions are made at the rate of 5% of salary to the 401(k) plan. However, employer contributions may be reduced
as part of the cost controls and unfunded liability controls as previously described in the defined benefit plan component
of the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan. Upon employment, employees are automatically enrolled
to contribute 2% of salary to the defined contribution plan but employees may elect to increase or decrease the employee
contributions at any time.

General Information about the 401(k) and 457 Defined Contribution Plans

The state provides additional voluntary defined contribution plans to give state employees and higher education
employees the opportunity to accumulate supplemental retirement income on a tax advantaged basis. The program
offers employees two plans, a 457 plan and a 401(k) plan. The contributions to the 401(k) plan can be made to both
traditional and/or Roth plans.

Employee contribution limits to the 401(k) and 457 plans are established by federal statute. In the 401(k) plan,
available to state and higher education employees in both the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension
Plan and the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan, voluntary employee contributions are matched by
employer contributions up to a maximum of $50 per month. Employer contributions are subject to the funding being
appropriated in the budget each fiscal year; otherwise, no match will be made by THDA. The THDA contribution for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was $210,182.

Employees are immediately vested in employee and employer contributions. Employees can choose to invest
employer and employee contributions among a variety of investment products.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Certain other GASB Statements (nos. 74 and 75) provide accounting and financial reporting requirements for
retiree healthcare plans and employer participants, commonly known as Other Post-Employment Benefits (‘OPEB”).
The State received an actuarial study as of June 30, 2022, that includes OPEB costs attributable to the State and,
separately, for certain of its component units (including THDA) that are required to participate in the State’s retirement
and benefit plans. The study, which used an entry age normal actuarial cost method, indicates that for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, the net OPEB liability of THDA is $1,184,620. Assets used to pay retiree benefits are being
accumulated in a qualifying trust being administered by the State of Tennessee. The OPEB trust that services the
Employee Group OPEB Plan (EGOP) prepares a standalone financial report. The OPEB valuations for the EGOP and
the standalone report for the OPEB Trust will be made available for review, following the current year audit, at
[Iwww.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/opeb22121.html. THDA contributes to the OPEB trust according to an actuarially
determined contribution (ADC) rate that is calculated for all participating employers in the EGOP. The state has the
flexibility to adjust the various plan options on an annual basis, and will continue to analyze the cost of the choices
available to current employees and retirees and the cost of the choices on the employees, retirees and the State’s cash
flow to manage these expenditures going forward.

General Resolution Requirements

The General Resolution requires certain conditions to be met prior to any withdrawal of funds from the lien of
the General Resolution. See Appendix D, Section 5.3(F) for a description of these conditions. In addition, certain tests
must also be met prior to any withdrawal of funds under the lien of the 1974 General Resolution, the 1985 General
Resolution, and the 2009 General Resolution. THDA funds which are not pledged under the referenced Resolutions can
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be removed without meeting such tests.
Absence of Interest Rate Swap Transactions

THDA has never entered into an interest rate swap transaction and no such transaction is currently anticipated
by THDA.

Secondary Market Sale of Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of August 31, 2022 THDA purchased 283 loans all of which have been or will be pooled into mortgage-
backed securities in the approximate principal amount of $51,990,114, and all of which were or will be sold in the
open market. Such loan purchases are being funded from lending facilities and other sources apart from, are not
secured by, and do not generate revenues under the General Resolution, or the 2009 General Resolution.

TAX MATTERS

THDA has included provisions in the Resolution, the Guide for Originating Agents issued by THDA and other
relevant documents and has established procedures, including receipt of certain affidavits and warranties from
Originating Agents and borrowers (the “Program Documents”) in order to assure compliance with the Program Loan
eligibility requirements and other requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance of the Offered Bonds.
Covenants in the Resolution obligate THDA to do and perform all acts and things permitted by law and necessary or
desirable to comply with applicable federal tax law and, for such purpose, to adopt and maintain appropriate procedures.
THDA believes that the procedures and documentation requirements established for the purpose of fulfilling this
covenant are sufficient to assure that the proceeds of the Offered Bonds will be applied in accordance with the
requirements of applicable federal tax law so as to assure that interest on the Offered Bonds will not be included in the
gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.

Opinion of Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Offered Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes under existing laws as enacted and construed on the date of the issuance of the Offered Bonds,
assuming the accuracy of the certifications of THDA and continuing compliance by THDA with the requirements of the
federal tax laws. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that the interest on the Offered Bonds is not a specific preference
item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax provisions of the Code; however, interest on the Offered
Bonds is taken into account in determining the annual adjusted financial statement income of certain corporations for
the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on such corporations for tax years beginning after
December 31, 2022.

Although Bond Counsel will render an opinion that interest on the Offered Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes, the accrual or receipt of interest on the Offered Bonds may otherwise affect
the federal income tax liability of the recipient. The extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the
recipient’s particular tax status or other items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding
any such consequences. Purchasers of the Offered Bonds, particularly purchasers that are corporations (including S
corporations and foreign corporations operating branches in the United States), property or casualty insurance
companies, banks, thrifts or other financial institutions, certain recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement
benefits, taxpayers otherwise entitled to claim the earned income credit, or taxpayers who may be deemed to have
incurred or continued indebtedness to carry tax-exempt obligations are advised to consult their tax advisors as to the
tax consequences of purchasing, holding or selling Offered Bonds.

THE EXTENT OF THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING OR HOLDING THE OFFERED BONDS
WILL DEPEND UPON THE BONDHOLDER’S TAX STATUS OR OTHER ITEMS OF INCOME OR DEDUCTION.
PURCHASERS OF THE OFFERED BONDS SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE
CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING OR HOLDING THE OFFERED BONDS.

Backup Withholding. As a result of the enactment of the Tax Increase Prevention and Reconciliation Act of
2005, interest on tax-exempt obligations such as the Offered Bonds is subject to information reporting in a manner
similar to interest paid on taxable obligations. Backup withholding may be imposed on payments to any owner of the
Offered Bonds that fails to provide certain required information including an accurate taxpayer identification number to
any person required to collect such information pursuant to Section 6049 of the Code. The reporting requirement does
not in and of itself affect or alter the excludability of interest on the Offered Bonds from gross income for federal income
tax purposes or any other federal tax consequence of purchasing, holding or selling tax-exempt obligations.
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Certain recipients of interest on the Offered Bonds may be subject to backup withholding under Section 3406
of the Code, unless the recipient of interest furnishes its taxpayer identification number with the payor of the interest or
is otherwise exempt from backup withholding tax.

From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress and in the states that, if enacted, could alter
or amend the federal and state tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of the Offered Bonds.
It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or whether if enacted it would apply
to bonds issued prior to enactment. In addition, regulatory actions are from time to time announced or proposed and
litigation is threatened or commenced which, if implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect
the market value of the Offered Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether any such regulatory action will be implemented,
how any particular litigation or judicial action will be resolved, or whether the Offered Bonds or the market value thereof
would be impacted thereby. Purchasers of the Offered Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending
or proposed legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation. The opinions to be expressed by Bond Counsel will be based
upon existing legislation and regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of
issuance and delivery of the Offered Bonds and Bond Counsel will express no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto
or with respect to any pending legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation.

Bond Premium. An amount equal to the excess of the issue price of an Offered Bond sold at a premium (a
“Premium Bond”) over its stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond. An initial
purchaser of a Premium Bond must amortize any premium over such Premium Bond’s term using constant yield
principles, based on the purchaser’s yield to maturity (or, in the case of Premium Bonds callable prior to their maturity,
by amortizing the premium to the call date, based on the purchaser’s yield to the call date and giving effect to any call
premium). As premium is amortized, the amount of the amortization offsets a corresponding amount of interest for the
period and the purchaser’s basis in such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an increase
in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such
Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser’s basis may be reduced, no federal income tax deduction
is allowed. Purchasers of the Premium Bonds should consult with their tax advisors with respect to the determination
and treatment of premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of
owning a Premium Bond.

Related Tax Matters

Changes in Federal and State Tax Law From time to time, there are legislative proposals in the Congress
and in the states that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal and state tax matters referred to above or otherwise
prevent beneficial owners of the Offered Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest,
or adversely affect the market value of Offered Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such
proposal might be enacted or whether if enacted it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. In addition,
regulatory actions are from time to time announced or proposed and litigation is threatened or commenced which, if
implemented or concluded in a particular manner, could adversely affect the market value of the Offered Bonds.
Purchasers of the Offered Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed legislation,
regulatory initiatives or litigation. The opinions expressed by Bond Counsel are based upon existing legislation and
regulations as interpreted by relevant judicial and regulatory authorities as of the date of issuance and delivery of the
Offered Bonds and Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion as of any date subsequent thereto or with respect to any
pending or proposed legislation, regulatory initiatives or litigation.

Tennessee Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under the laws of the State of Tennessee as enacted and construed on the date
of issuance of the Offered Bonds, as applicable, interest on the Offered Bonds is exempt from income tax imposed by
the State of Tennessee on interest income; however, the Offered Bonds and interest received thereon are included in
the measure of privilege taxes imposed by the State of Tennessee.

LEGAL INVESTMENT

The Act provides that the bonds of THDA are securities in which all public officers and bodies of the State and
all municipal subdivisions, all insurance companies and associations and other persons carrying on insurance business,
all banks, bankers, trust companies, including savings and loan associations, building and loan associations, investment
banking companies and other persons carrying on an investment banking business, all administrators, guardians,
executors, trustees and other fiduciaries, and all other persons who are now or may hereafter be authorized to invest in
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bonds or other obligations of the State, may properly and legally invest in the bonds of THDA with funds, including
capital, in their own control or belonging to them.

RATINGS

THDA expects that Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) has assigned the Offered Bonds a rating of
‘Aat1’ and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLP business (“S&P”) has
assigned the Offered Bonds a rating of ‘AA+.” Such ratings reflect only the views of the respective rating agency and
an explanation of the criteria for and the significance of such ratings may be obtained from Moody’s and Standard &
Poor's. THDA has furnished to Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s certain information and materials with respect to the
Offered Bonds. Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on such information and materials, and on investigations,
studies and assumptions made by the rating agencies. There is no assurance that the ratings will continue for any
given period of time or that the ratings will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by these rating agencies, if in the
judgment of the rating agency, circumstances so warrant. A downward revision or withdrawal of the ratings may have
an adverse effect on the market price of the Offered Bonds.

Due to the ongoing uncertainly regarding the economy of the United States of America (including, without
limitation, matters such as COVID-19, as described in “BUSINESS DISRUPTION RISKS; COVID-19; CYBERSECURITY”
herein, and the current and future political uncertainty regarding the United States debt limit), obligations, such as the
Offered Bonds, issued by state and local governments, and instrumentalities thereof, could be subject to a rating
downgrade. Additionally, if a significant default or other financial crisis should occur in the affairs of the United States or
of any of its agencies or political subdivisions, then such event could also adversely affect the market for and ratings,
liquidity, and market value of outstanding debt obligations, including the Offered Bonds. When certain automatic
spending cuts are imposed on the federal government as a result of actions taken or not taken by the federal government
(commonly referred to as a sequester) or when the federal government fails to pass certain spending authorizations prior
to certain deadlines, resulting in a cessation of various governmental functions and operations (commonly referred to
as a government shutdown), there may not be any immediate direct adverse impact on FHA, VA, RD or THDA. No
assurance can be given, however, that a sequester or a government shutdown that lasts an extended period of time
would continue to have no direct adverse impact upon the United States housing industry in general or THDA in
particular.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Secondary Market Disclosure

THDA is currently disseminating and presently intends to continue to disseminate information relating to its
various single-family mortgage revenue bonds in accordance with the quarterly secondary market disclosure project
sponsored by the National Council of State Housing Agencies. THDA has filed quarterly reports, beginning with the
quarter ending June 30, 1994, with each then nationally recognized municipal securities information repository. THDA
also expects that its official statements, which contain audited financial information about THDA, with respect to bonds
issued under the General Resolution, the 1985 General Resolution, and the 2009 General Resolution will be filed with
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA)
system if and when bonds are so issued. It is the present intent of THDA to continue making voluntary secondary market
disclosure as described above.

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking

In order to comply with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12 as promulgated on the issue date of the Offered
Bonds by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Rule”), THDA, in
the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Offered Bonds, agrees tofile:

(@) With the MSRB, within 210 days after the end of each THDA fiscal year, a copy of its annual financial
statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standard Board, as described in “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS” below, and an annual update of the type of
information in this Official Statement (i) of the nature disclosed under “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM BONDS,”
and “RESIDENTIAL FINANCE PROGRAM LOANS” including, without limitation, information with respect to the
outstanding balances of Program Loans, by mortgage type, and delinquency information, (ii) contained in Appendix E
hereto and (iii) regarding annual required contributions for employee pension plan and other post- employment
benefits to the extent not included in annual financial statements (collectively, “Annual Financial Information”). If
unaudited financial statements are provided as part of the Annual Financial Information by the above date, then THDA
shall provide, when and if available, a copy of THDA'’s audited financial statements to the MSRB;
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(b) In a timely manner, not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event, with the MRSB
and the Trustee, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events (if applicable) with respect to the Offered
Bonds: (i)principal and interest payment delinquencies; (ii) non-payment related defaults, if material; (iii)unscheduled
draws on debt service reserve funds reflecting financial difficulties; (iv) unscheduled draws on any credit
enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;
(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) of proposed or final determinations
of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect
to the tax status of the Offered Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Offered Bonds; (vii)
modifications to rights of holders of the Offered Bonds, if material; (viii) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (ix)
defeasances; (x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Offered Bonds, if material; (xi)
rating changes; bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of THDA (which event is considered to occur
when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for THDA in a proceeding
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of THDA, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject
to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of THDA); (xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition
involving THDA or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of THDA, other than in the ordinary course of business,
the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to
any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (xiv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or
the change of name of a trustee, if material; (xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of THDA, if material, or agreement
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation of THDA, any of
which affect bondholders, if material; and (xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of THDA, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

For the purposes of the events identified in clauses (xv) and (xvi) above, the term “financial obligation” means:
(A) a debt obligation; (B) a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of
payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) a guarantee of (A) or (B). The term “financial obligation” shall
not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the
Rule.

() In a timely manner, to (i) the MRSB and (ii) the Trustee, notice of a failure by THDA to provide the
Annual Financial Information set forth in (a) above within the time limit specified above.

THDA may amend the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution, with respect to the above agreements, without
the consent of the Beneficial Owners of the applicable Issue of Offered Bonds (except to the extent required under
clause (4)(ii) below), if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such amendment is made in connection with a
change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal (including regulatory) requirements, a change in law
(including rules or regulations) or in interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of THDA or the
type of business conducted thereby; (2) these agreements as so amended would have complied with the requirements
of the Rule as of the date of the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; (3) THDA shall have delivered to the Trustee an
opinion of counsel, addressed to THDA and the Trustee, to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above; (4) either
(i) THDA shall deliver to the Trustee an opinion of or determination by a person unaffiliated with THDA (which may
include the Trustee or bond counsel), acceptable to THDA and the Trustee, addressed to THDA and the Trustee, to the
effect that the amendment does not materially impair the interests of the holders of the Offered Bonds, or (ii) the holders
of the Offered Bonds consent to the amendment pursuant to the same procedures as are required for amendments to
the General Resolution with consent of the holders of Offered Bonds pursuant to the General Resolution as in effect on
the date of the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution, and (5) THDA shall have delivered copies of such opinion(s) and
the amendment to the MRSB.

THDA'’s obligations under these agreements as set forth in the Issue 2022-3 Supplemental Resolution
terminate upon a legal defeasance pursuant to the General Resolution, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the
Offered Bonds. THDA shall give notice of any such termination to the MSRB.

THDA acknowledges that its undertaking pursuant to the Rule described under this heading is intended to be
for the benefit for the Beneficial Owners of the Offered Bonds whether or not the Rule applies to such Bonds. Breach of
this undertaking will not be a default under the Resolution but this undertaking may be enforced by any Beneficial Owner
of the Offered Bonds exclusively by an action for specific performance. This undertaking shall be construed and
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interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this undertaking shall be
instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State.

ABSENCE OF MATERIAL LITIGATION

At the time of delivery of and payment for the Offered Bonds, a certificate of THDA and an opinion of counsel
will be furnished, dated the date of delivery, to the effect that there is no controversy or litigation of any nature at such
time pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Offered Bonds, or in any
way contesting or affecting the validity of the Offered Bonds or any proceedings of THDA taken with respect to the
issuance or sale thereof or the pledge or application of any moneys or security provided for the payment of the Offered
Bonds or the existence or powers of THDA.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

The issuance of the Offered Bonds is subject to the delivery of the legal opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, Atlanta,
Georgia, Bond Counsel with respect to legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance, sale, and delivery of the
Offered Bonds in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix H. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for
THDA by its Chief Legal Counsel, Bruce Balcom, and for the Underwriters by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York,
New York.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of THDA as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, included in Appendix A have
been audited by the Division of State Audit in the Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of Tennessee,
independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing herein.

Appendix A also contains unaudited financial information as of and for the nine months ended March 31,
2022. This financial information has been derived from the unaudited internal records of THDA. THDA'’s independent
auditors have not reviewed, examined, or performed any procedures with respect to the unaudited financial
information, nor have they expressed an opinion or any other form of assurance on such information, and assume no
responsibility for, and disclaim any association with the unaudited information. The unaudited information is
preliminary and is subject to change as a result of the audit and may materially differ from the audited financial
statements when they are released. No prediction can be made at this time as to when the audited financial statements
will be released, but when they are released they will be filed with the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market
Access (EMMA) system.

UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Raymond James & Associates, Inc., J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and Wiley Brothers-Aintree Capital, LLC (collectively, the
“Underwriters”) have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Offered Bonds from THDA at the prices
indicated on the inside cover of this Official Statement. The Underwriters will be paid a fee in connection with the
purchase of the Offered Bonds in an amount equal to $967,394.59. The obligations of the Underwriters to purchase
the Offered Bonds are subject to certain conditions precedent. The Underwriters will be obligated to purchase all such
Offered Bonds if any such Offered Bonds are purchased.

The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities,
which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management,
principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the Underwriters and their respective
affiliates may have, from time to time, performed and may in the future perform, various investment banking services
for THDA, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. In the ordinary course of their various
business activities, the Underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and
actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (which may include
bank loans and/or credit default swaps) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and may at any
time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may
involve securities and instruments of THDA.

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., an underwriter of the Offered Bonds, has entered into a retail distribution
agreement with Fidelity Capital Markets, a division of National Financial Services LLC (together with its affiliates,
“Fidelity”). Under this distribution agreement, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. may distribute municipal securities to retail
investors at the original issue price through Fidelity. As part of this arrangement, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. will
compensate Fidelity for its selling efforts.
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J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“JPMS”), one of the underwriters of the Offered Bonds, has entered into negotiated
dealer agreements (each, a “Dealer Agreement”) with each of Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. (‘CS&Co.”) and LPL Financial
LLC (“LPL”) for the retail distribution of certain securities offerings at the original issue prices. Pursuant to each Dealer
Agreement, each of CS&Co. and LPL may purchase Offered Bonds from JPMS at the original issue price less a
negotiated portion of the selling concession applicable to any Offered Bonds that such firmsells.

Wells Fargo Corporate & Investment Banking (which may be referred to elsewhere as “CIB,” “Wells Fargo
Securities” or “WFS”) is the trade name used for the corporate banking, capital markets and investment banking
services of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
(“WFBNA”), a member of the National Futures Association, which conducts its municipal securities sales, trading and
underwriting operations through the Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Municipal Finance Group, a separately identifiable
department of WFBNA, registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as a municipal securities dealer
pursuant to Section 15B(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

WFBNA, acting through its Municipal Finance Group, one of the underwriters of the Offered Bonds, has
entered into an agreement (the "WFA Distribution Agreement") with its affiliate, Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC
(which uses the trade name “Wells Fargo Advisors”) ("WFA"), for the distribution of certain municipal securities
offerings, including the Offered Bonds. Pursuant to the WFA Distribution Agreement, WFBNA will share a portion of its
underwriting or remarketing agent compensation, as applicable, with respect to the Offered Bonds with WFA. WFBNA
has also entered into an agreement (the “WFSLLC Distribution Agreement”) with its affiliate Wells Fargo Securities,
LLC (“WFSLLC”), for the distribution of municipal securities offerings, including the Offered Bonds. Pursuant to the
WFSLLC Distribution Agreement, WFBNA pays a portion of WFSLLC’s expenses based on its municipal securities
transactions. WFBNA, WFSLLC, and WFA are each wholly-owned subsidiaries of Wells Fargo & Company.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not expressly so
stated, are intended as such and not as representatives of fact. No representation is made that such statements will be
realized. All financial and other information presented in this Official Statement has been provided by THDA from its
records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources. The presentation of information is intended to show
recent historic information, and it is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other
affairs of THDA. No representation is made that past experience, as it might be shown by such financial and other
information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future. References to and summaries of provisions of the
laws of the State or of any other documents referred to in this Official Statement are qualified in their entirety by reference
to the complete provisions thereof. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between
THDA and the purchasers or holders of any of the Offered Bonds.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and no implication should be derived
therefrom or from the issuance, as applicable, of the Offered Bonds that there has been no change in the affairs of
THDA from the date hereof. Pursuant to the General Resolution, THDA has covenanted to keep proper books of record
and account in which full, true and correct entries will be made of all its dealings and transactions under the General
Resolution and to cause such books to be audited for each fiscal year. The General Resolution requires that such books
be open to inspection by the holder of any Bond during regular business hours of THDA and that THDA furnish a copy
of the auditor’s report, when available, upon request of the holder of any outstanding Bond. This Official Statement is
submitted in connection with the sale of the securities referred to herein which are proposed to be issued by THDA. It
may not be reproduced or used in part, or, as a whole or in part, for any other purpose.

TENNESSEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

/s/ Matt McGauley
Chair

/s/Ralph M. Perrey
Executive Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor
Members of the General Assembly
Members of the Board of Directors
Mr. Ralph Perrey, Executive Director

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Tennessee Housing Development
Agency, a component unit of the State of Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Tennessee
Housing Development Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
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no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion. Tennessee statutes, in addition to audit responsibilities, entrust certain other
responsibilities to the Comptroller of the Treasury. Those responsibilities include serving as a
member of the board of directors of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency. We do not
believe that the Comptroller’s service in this capacity affected our ability to conduct an
independent audit of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency as of June 30, 2021, and the

changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of THDA’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability for the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan within TCRS,
the schedule of THDA’s proportionate share of the net pension asset for the State and Higher
Education Employee Retirement Plan within TCRS, the schedule of THDA’s contributions to the
Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan within TCRS, the schedule of THDA’s
contributions to the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan within TCRS, the
schedule of THDA'’s proportionate share of the collective total/net OPEB liability for the Closed
State Employee Group OPEB Plan, the schedule of THDA’s proportionate share of the collective
total OPEB liability for the Closed Tennessee OPEB Plan, and the schedule of contributions to the
State of Tennessee Postemployment Benefits Trust for the Closed State Employee Group OPEB
Plan be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the agency’s basic financial statements. The accompanying financial
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from,
and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 29, 2021, on our consideration of the agency’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards in
considering the agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

it ) Seitel

Katherine J. Stickel, CPA, CGFM, Director
Division of State Audit
November 29, 2021
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TENNESSEE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2021

This section of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency’s (THDA) annual financial
statements presents management’s discussion and analysis of THDA’s financial performance for
the year ended June 30, 2021, with comparative information presented for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020. This information is being presented to provide additional information regarding
the activities of THDA and to meet the financial reporting and disclosure requirements of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements—
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments. This section
should be read in conjunction with the Independent Auditor’s Report and the audited financial
statements and accompanying notes. These financial statements and the accompanying note
disclosures are the responsibility of management.

Introduction — The Tennessee Housing Development Agency

The mission statement of THDA is “Leading Tennessee Home by creating safe, sound, affordable
housing opportunities.” THDA’s goal is to provide housing assistance to those in need by offering
a variety of housing-related programs. One of the primary ways THDA assists Tennesseans is by
offering mortgages for first-time homebuyers at below conventional market interest rates. At the
close of fiscal year 2021, THDA has originated over 131,000 single-family mortgage loans in its
48-year history, and serves as the master servicer for all active mortgages it funds. In addition to
helping homebuyers, THDA administers Section 8 rental assistance programs, including the
tenant-based Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program in approximately 70 of Tennessee’s 95
counties, as well as the project-based Contract Administration program for approximately 376
contracts throughout all of Tennessee. THDA also administers grant programs, awarded on a
competitive annual cycle, for rehabilitation and new construction of owner-occupied units and
small rental projects. THDA is also involved in the development and rehabilitation of multifamily
rental housing for low-income families by administering the federal Low-Income Housing Tax
Credit, which is a competitive process, and by setting aside a portion of bond authority to be
allocated to local issuing authorities for specific multifamily developments.

As established by statute, “The agency shall have a board of directors which shall be responsible
for carrying out the powers given to the agency. . .” (Section 13-23-105, Tennessee Code
Annotated). This board meets regularly on a bimonthly basis; however, some committees may
meet more often as situations dictate.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include statement of net position; statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position; and statement of cash flows, as well as notes to the financial
statements. The statement of net position provides financial information on the overall financial
position of THDA at each year end. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position summarizes the results of operations over the course of each fiscal year. The statement
of cash flows provides relevant information about THDA’s cash receipts and cash payments during
each fiscal year.
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The notes to the financial statements provide essential information regarding THDAs significant
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, certain material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events.

THDA'’s financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of
economic resources measurement focus. In addition to the basic financial statements, required and
other supplementary information is included.

THDA is also considered to be a discretely presented “component unit” for the State of Tennessee,
and therefore, its financial information is reported in the State of Tennessee’s government-wide
Annual ~ Comprehensive  Financial — Report. ~This report may be viewed at
https://www.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/fa-accfin-ar.html.

Financial Highlights

Year Ended June 30, 2021
e Total assets increased by $77.2 million, or 2.2%.
e Total liabilities increased by $64.3 million, or 2.1%.

e Net position was $548.7 million. This is an increase of $13.3 million, or 2.5%, from fiscal
year 2020 net position (as adjusted).

e Cash and cash equivalents increased by $159 million, or 61.1%.
e Total investments decreased by $21.6 million, or 9%.
e Bonds payable increased by $28.6 million, or 1%.

e THDA originated $389.6 million in new loans, which is a decrease of $285.9 million, or
42.3%, from the prior year.
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Financial Analysis of the Agency

Net Position — The following table focuses on the changes in net position between fiscal years
(expressed in thousands):

2021 2020
Current assets $ 603,820 $ 436,492
Capital assets 5,171 5,181
Other noncurrent assets 3,013,397 3,103,541
Total assets 3,622,388 3,545,214
Deferred outflows of resources 4,103 4,513
Current liabilities 205,667 186,312
Noncurrent liabilities 2,870,046 2,825,109
Total liabilities 3,075,713 3,011,421
Deferred inflows of resources 2,107 2,939
Investment in capital assets 5,171 5,181
Restricted net position 494,520 491,638
Unrestricted net position 48,980 38,548
Total net position $ 548,671 $ 535,367

2021 to 2020

First and second mortgage loans receivable (net of allowance for forgivable second mortgages)
decreased by $73.8 million. During fiscal year 2021, single-family mortgage loan originations
decreased by $285.9 million, whereas mortgage loan payoffs increased by $164.1 million and
mortgage loan repayments increased $3 million. In addition, THDA recognized an allowance for
future uncollectable forgivable second mortgages of $32.9 million for fiscal year 2021.

Total liabilities increased $64.3 million. The increase is primarily due to a $28.6 million increase
of bonds payable at June 30, 2021, as compared to June 30, 2020, and a $17.2 million increase in
unearned revenue primarily from funds received in advance of expenses for the Homeowner
Assistance Fund (HAF). This program was a new program in fiscal year 2021.
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Changes in Net Position — The following table summarizes the changes in revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position between fiscal years (expressed in thousands):

2021 2020

Operating revenues

Mortgage interest income $ 121,440 $ 119,643

Investment income 276 7,363

Other 42,707 27,495
Total operating revenues 164,423 154,501
Operating expenses

Interest expense 80,015 81,688

Other 61,288 54,825
Total operating expenses 141,303 136,513
Operating income 23,120 17,988
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Grant revenues 382,218 335,395

Payments from primary govt 277 311

Grant expenses (392,311) (344,407)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9,816) (8,701)
Change in net position $ 13,304 $ 97287

2021 to 2020

Total operating revenues increased $9.9 million, primarily due to an increase in other income of

$15.2 million. Other income increased primarily due to an increase in federal grant administration
fees.

Total operating expenses increased $4.8 million. This is primarily due to an increase in contractual
services. Contractual services increased primarily due to contractual activity related to the

Emergency Rental Assistance (ERA) 1 Program. This program was a new program in fiscal year
2021.

Nonoperating grant revenues increased $46.8 million and nonoperating grant expenses increased
$47.9 million, primarily due to an increase in spending of federal grant programs. The increase in
spending of federal grant programs is due to THDA being awarded new sources of funding from
the federal government that are related to COVID-19 pandemic relief.
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Debt Activity

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2021, were $2,909,404 (expressed in thousands) which is a $28.6
million increase from bonds outstanding of $2,880,811 (expressed in thousands) as of June 30,
2020. The increase in bonds payable is smaller than in recent fiscal years, primarily due to a
decrease in mortgage production, which therefore lead to fewer bonds issued during fiscal year
2021. In addition, prepayments on bonds remained at a high level. During the fiscal year, THDA
issued debt totaling $440 million, with activity arising from three bond issues.

With interest rates remaining at historically low levels, THDA continued to call bonds with
proceeds from mortgage repayments and prepayments. THDA did not refund outstanding bonds
into new bond originations with lower interest rates.

Bond Ratings

For bonds issued under the Homeownership Program Bonds, Moody’s Investor Service, Inc.
(Moody’s) has assigned THDA’s bonds a rating of Aal, and Standard and Poor’s Global Ratings
(S&P), a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., has assigned THDA’s bonds a rating of
AA+.

For bonds issued under the Housing Finance Program Bonds, Moody’s has assigned THDA’s
bonds a rating of Aa2. These bonds are not rated by S&P.

For bonds issued under the Residential Finance Program Bonds, Moody’s has assigned THDA’s
bonds a rating of Aal and S&P has assigned THDA’s bonds a rating of AA+.

Debt Limits

In accordance with Section 13-23-121, Tennessee Code Annotated, THDA operates under a “debt
ceiling” of $4,000,000,000.

Grant Programs

During fiscal year 2007 through fiscal year 2009, the General Assembly appropriated revenue to
THDA for grant programs. Likewise, THDA’s board of directors allocated additional THDA funds
for grants. These funds established a grant program that was titled by THDA the “Tennessee
Housing Trust Fund.”

The four-level model for funding this grant program includes state appropriations, THDA funds,
private sector investment, and matching funds from local grantees. The purpose of this grant
program is to serve the needs of low and/or very low income, elderly, and special needs
Tennesseans. Funding and uses for the Housing Trust Fund are as follows:
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2021 2020 2019 and Total
Prior

Funding Sources:
THDA $7,400,000 $10,500,000  $90,800,000  $108,700,000
State Appropriation - - 4,350,000 4,350,000
Totals $7,400,000 $10,500,000  $95,150,000